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Corporate Profile

DA

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1123) has a long-established business
partnership with Fujifilm Japan as the sole authorised distributor of Fujifilm products in Hong Kong and
Macau since 1968. The Group has established an extensive network of importers and distributors in these
two markets.

In August 2013, the Group expanded its business to the sales of consumer electronics products and

household electrical appliances under the names of “AV Life”, “Life Electric” and “Life Digital” as well as the
provision of professional audio-visual advisory and custom design and installation service.

Backed to September 2010, the Group was appointed by Fujifilm Japan as the exclusive agent in Hong
Kong, the first overseas market outside Japan, to launch and trade Fujifilm skincare products via the brand
name of “ASTALIFT”.

In July 2001, the Group acquired Fotomax Holdings Limited and started to broaden its network from
wholesale to include retail business. Through this expansion, the Group operates Fotomax, a leading retail
chain that provides photographic processing services across Hong Kong. Fotomax shops use Fujifilm digital
laser printing technology to provide high quality photofinishing and digital output services. Fotomax also
provides a full range of imaging services include digital imaging and professional imaging services as well
as the sales of other imaging related accessories.

In 2005, the Group established a wholly-owned subsidiary in Beijing for arrangement of future expansion of
its wholesale and retail services network following the granting of certificates through the Mainland China
and Hong Kong Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (CEPA), as preferred Hong Kong wholesale and
retail service supplier.

In August 2015, the Group acquired a 49% stake in the Hong Kong operations of kikki.K, an international
retail chain that sells premium Scandinavian-designed stationery, gifts and homeware products.

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda on 6 July, 1994 and listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong on 19 September, 1994. The Group is held by the public 39.89%
and by its founder, the Sun family 60.11% through Searich Group Limited, Fine Products Limited and Dago
Corporation.
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Mission Statement

Our mission is to fully satisfy and exceed the expectations
of our customers by delivering exceptional premium
products and services in our specialist fields of
photography and imaging services, electronic goods

and services, and skincare products. Parallel with this,

our mission is to satisfy our shareholders by achieving
steady, prudent growth and satisfactory returns on their
investment. This dual mission is being achieved through
our long-term commitment to the communities of Hong
Kong and Macau where we operate.
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Corporate Principles

Fostering strong internal relationships between
management and employees

Creating an environment that will encourage
employees to be confident and competent
Empowering our staff to boost employees’ morale
Striving to provide quality service and distribute
diversified products to our customers’ satisfaction
Commitment to effective and open communication
with our shareholders, our customers, our colleagues
and the community

Actively seeking opportunities to help the community
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Financial Highlights
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FeakaxaEH CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT DATA
HZ3A31HILLEE Year ended 31 March
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR  BETR  BMTR BT OBETR
g Revenue 929,839 852,510 886,668 966,658 861,669
MELALER,(B5E) Profit/(loss) before tax 44,546 (19,095) (65,846) (31,447) 21,165
s (%) K& Income tax (expense)/credit (5,399) 448 (3,018) (2,377) (5,480)
FRIFIZIRFER AT 2 Profit/(loss) before non-
wH,(E1R) controlling interests 39,147 (18,647) (68,864) (33,824) 15,685
FEIER RS Non-controlling interests 941 789 1,616 (535) 216
RNBEE AEML Profit/(loss) attributable to
wH(E1R) owners of the Company 38,206 (19,436) (70,480) (33,289) 15,469
BRE Dividends - - - (11,853) (47,412)
BRER Per share data HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
AL AL AL AL AL
BR,(E18) Earnings/(loss) 3.22 (1.64) (5.95) (2.81) 1.31
FRHARR B Interim dividend - - — 1.00 -
FRER4E R AR B Interim special dividend = - _ _ 2.00
BORR B 2 Proposed final dividend - = — = 1.00
BORR B4 Bl AR S Proposed final special dividend - - ~ = 1.00
FEMBRAEEH CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATA
M3B31H As at 31 March
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
BETR  EETR  EETR BT EETR
YE - BRERZRE Property, plant and equipment 81,712 68,325 74,717 83,189 77,877
REYE Investment properties 227,235 194,240 190,785 177,185 168,720
5k Goodwill - - - 44,207 80,085
BE Trademarks - - - 14,388 15,173
HERIIBITERS Cash and bank balances 219,486 241,180 260,701 270,192 360,070
HiRBEEZE Other net current assets 179,301 157,671 160,261 165,301 126,604
HEERABEE Total assets less current
liabilities 720,601 675,161 699,334 768,649 842,885
RS Non-controlling interests (1,136) (1,853) (1,064) 552 (228)
ERBERE Non-current liabilities 29,156 26,408 29,961 (29,494) (33,902)
RATEB AEEEZ  Equity attributable
to the owners of the
Company 690,309 646,900 668,309 739,707 808,755
% % % % %
BIEEE AR = Debt to equity ratio = - - _ _
B ERE Return on equity 5.53 (3.00) (10.55) (4.50) 1.91
REE Dividend pay-out ratio N/ATEA NATER NATEAR (35.61) 306.50
MENEL R Current ratio 4217.53 500.35 492.27 518.20 483.11
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Chairman’s Statement
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Last year, the Group responded to the challenges it faced in Hong Kong by putting
together a comprehensive three-year business development plan. This plan first
identified the essential cost controls needed to bolster our overall business performance,
but it also went much further than that. We systematically examined the full range of
the Group’s fairly diverse business activities, identifying both positive and negative
long-term consumer trends as well as areas with potential for significant future growth.
We then developed plans to shift our focus into products and services with such
potential while effectively maintaining our core operations.
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The Group’s annual results for 2017/2018 reflect that the initial returns of this business
development plan have been very encouraging. Overall, sales have risen year on year;
more importantly, the Group has once again returned to profitability. Certainly, we have
benefited from an improved economic environment in Hong Kong, which has boosted
retail sales across the board. Yet the Group’s turnaround has not been solely dependent
on external factors. Much of the improvement in our performance can be attributed to
the careful, well-planned initiatives we have undertaken to highlight growth areas and
control spending elsewhere. In fact, we have already achieved significant growth in

the high-potential areas identified in our business development plan. In photographic
products and photofinishing and technical services, this has included strong sales of
high-specification digital cameras and various high-margin photographic services, such
as our ID photo service and personalised image gift items. Recognising the potential

of these businesses, we have given them priority in our promotional and marketing
activities and reaped the benefits of our hard work to attain very good results for the
year.

Among the Group’s other main operational areas, the wholesale segment for commercial
and professional AV products and the segment for professional AV advisory, custom

design and installation services have also borne fruit. We are focused on becoming the best
specialist high-end wholesale distributor and project manager of leading branded electronics
equipment in the market. During the year we also enhanced our reputation for quality and
technical expertise in sales, service and installation. After a few challenging years in a weak
market, the performances from these businesses have justified our faith in them.

SER2017/2018FE2FEXBERMZEXEBBRITENNIRRFESATE - BEM
CHHEBEZE LA FEEMNR  SEEBEAMERT - BR > AAREBLEREREME
 EBNTEHEINR  AMEEESARWIIFESXBINBEE - RMRBEUARS -
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Chairman’s Statement EfFRE

With rent levels in Hong Kong stabilising over the past year, the difficulty that constant rent increases have posed to
our retail businesses has eased. We continue to rationalise our distribution channels to ensure they are cost-effective and
profit-earning, but this year we have enjoyed greater stability in our store locations than we have for some time.

Our three-year business development plan is still in its initial phases. In the year ahead, we will continue to streamline
our operations and implement additional facets of the plan to boost sales and support some of our most promising
business segments. For example, we have begun to introduce our own self-designed Fotomax stationery products and
gift sets in response to strong demand. We will also continue to explore and rationalise the brands and products that

we carry in our various businesses. With an excellent set of results in 2017/2018, we are entering 2018/2019 with much
confidence.

THANKS & ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On the back of a good year, | would like to thank the Group’s colleagues and partners, all of whom have played
instrumental roles in our achievements. The support of our many business partners and loyal investors has once again
been invaluable. We have also benefited from strong and committed sales teams, whose commitment has been vital
in winning new customers and bringing them back for repeat business. Because of everyone’s efforts, we are entering

another year with confidence that our business development initiatives are on the right track towards delivering renewed
performance results in the future.
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Group Structure
EEZRE

Hong Kong and China Operations
EERPEHE

Property Holding Companies Retail Operations
fZES 2T YNl FEXY

I 70% 60%

Fuji Life Science Products Ltd. Wai Ming Electrical

Realscore Ltd. Emmy Technology Development Ltd. ErEDNRERARAT Development Ltd.

HIMEIARRE UEMBERBRAT 4
—————————— ——

49%

Pro Audio Development Ltd.

CHKP Investments Ltd. (BV) e = Kikki.K Retail (H.) Lid.

Fujimage Ltd.
EIEFEDLARAT

E-Max Service Ltd.
BEIRRBARAT

China-Hongkong Photo Retail Ltd. (BV/)

China-Hongkong Graphic
Arts Products Ltd.
PEBENRIRMARAE

ShRBIERIR (LiE)BIRAE)

\
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Fuji Photo Products Co., Ltd.
SRS RMARAT Callas Inyestments Ltd. Fotomax Holdings Ltd. (8V)
EESREARAT

China-Hongkong Photo
Products (China) Co,, Ltd. (BV) Great Earnings Investments Ltd.
HERERRAT

YCY International Ltd.
ERERBIRAT

Majestic Income Ltd.
BRARAE

Fotomax Trading Ltd. (CEPA)

Fotomax Ltd.
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el Speed-Up Enterprises Ltd. CTE
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I
Mark Vision Ltd. (BV/) EXBTRR(LBAERAT
— e —
Fuji Colour Equipments Co., Ltd.
=T R 2 NGl
w Palace Glory Ltd. China-Hongkong Medical Products Ltd.
HEARAT PEBRERARAT

Pride High Co., Ltd.

HABERAD Orient City Properties Ltd.
e | S
Hainan Fuji Color Equipments Co,, Ltd. . .
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Sichuan Fuji Color Equipments Co., Ltd.
Sky Year R Ltd. .
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Operations Review
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MTR Advertisement
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REVENUE AND RESULTS

The launch of the Group’s three-year business development plan, which was designed

to sharpen its focus on core strengths, proved successful and reinvigorated the Group’s
financial performance for the year under review. Building on a Hong Kong retail market that
is more stable than it has been in the past several years, the Group was able to increase

its consolidated turnover to HK$930 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 compared
to HK$853 million the previous year, representing an increase of 9.1%. Excluding the non-
operating gain from the increase in value in investment properties of HK$37 million, the
Group also achieved a return to net profit before tax of HK$7 million, representing an
encouraging turnaround from the net loss reported last year. On a reporting basis, the
Group’s net profit increased to HK$39 million. The Board of Directors does not recommend
any final dividend for the year.

MERCHANDISING

Photographic Products

One objective of the Group’s three-year business development plan is to leverage its
strengths in providing high-quality photographic equipment to the large number of
photographers for whom smartphone camera capabilities are inadequate, including
professional photographers and aspiring amateurs. To implement this objective, the Group
relies on the proven professional quality of the FUJIFILM range of cameras and accessories
that it sells in Hong Kong.

Following the launches of remarkable FUJIFILM X-series cameras like the X-T2, XT20 and
X100F as well as the prestigious GFX50S in late 2016/2017, and the launches of the
advanced new X-E3, X-A5 and X-H1 models in 2017/2018, the Group’s digital product
sales soared 48.1% year on year on the back of enthusiastic reception from buyers. (Details
of the special features of these new cameras are provided in the ‘Brand Management’
section below.) By contrast, sales of instant photographic products fell 16.8% for the

year. While the stylish Neo Classic instant camera and Instax Share smartphone printers
continued to hit the market during the year, the Group was compelled to offer huge
discounts on instax films to compete with the increased amount of parallel goods in the
region. This caused sales of instax film to drop 21.3% in terms of value and 2.8% in terms
of quantity.
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Skincare Products

The Group’s skincare business saw phenomenal performance during the year. Sales
grew 45.9% compared to last year. 46.7% of the sales came from our own online
platform, www.astalift.com.hk. The remainder of sales was achieved through other
popular regional online sales platforms, like HKTVmall, two pop-up counters operated
at AEON department stores, and the Group’s FUJIFILM Studio in Causeway Bay.
FUJIFILM continued to provide us with new, highly recognised products featuring
unique, sophisticated skincare technology. During the year we sold a range of more
than 80 products, with star products such as Collagen Drink 10000 and Jelly Aquarysta
contributing a respective 27.7% and 18.8% to the segment’s revenue for the year. In
addition to enriching our product portfolio, we also reinforced our marketing efforts
to strengthen our customer base, mainly through social media. During the year we
registered 763 new members, a jump of 18.5% over last year. More than half of these
registered members made repeat purchases during the year, demonstrating that the
Group is succeeding in building a loyal customer base.

Consumer Electronic Products and Household Appliances

After years of depressed consumer sentiment for consumer electronic products and
household appliances, 2017/2018 saw an improvement in this area of the Group’s
business. As at 31 March 2018, the Group was operating a total of 15 stores (31 March
2017: 17) under the AV Life, Life Digital and Wai Ming brands. While the Group closed
three underperforming stores during the year, it also opened a new flagship store for
audio and visual equipment in November 2017 at Tuen Mun Town Plaza, one of the
busiest, most vibrant locations in town. Occupying 2,000 square feet, the Tuen Mun
store provides an ideal space to showcase the most advanced home theatre and audio
equipment to potential customers. For the year, total sales in the consumer electronic
products and household appliances segment increased by 2.9% despite the drop in
overall store numbers, with comparable store sales seeing an encouraging increase of 7%.
These results were achieved following successful product launch strategies and effective
marketing support.
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In addition to reviewing our store portfolio to ensure we have the optimal mix of
distribution channels, space and store count, we also constantly refresh the assortments
under our brand portfolio in order to provide a variety of choice to customers and increase
our margins. During the year we offered more than 60 distinctive international brands,
with Samsung, Sony and LG continuing to be our top three best-selling brands. In terms
of product mix, 77.6% (2016/2017: 72%) of this segment sales came from audio and
visual products like TVs, while 16.6% (2016/2017: 22%) came from home appliances like
refrigerators, washing machines and air conditioners and 5.9% (2016/2017: 6%) came from
3C products such as computers, communications equipment and cameras. The shift of

our sales focus from home appliances to audio-visual equipment is tied to our three-year
business development plan and enables better earnings and inventory management.

Other key factors in our promising results for this segment were the success of a strong
series of inspirational marketing and promotional campaigns, including collaborative
promotions with numerous renowned brands, as well as exclusive product promotions
through roadshows, social media advertising, participation in the Hong Kong Disneyland
Cast Blast Fair, and press interviews.

B-to-B Commercial and Professional Audio and Visual Products

Demand for commercial and professional audio and visual products has remained strong
over the years, and the Group has continuously developed new strategies for tapping into
this market. During the year under review, the Group gained additional distribution rights
for products like commercial TVs, frame TVs and hospitality TVs from several renowned
brands, which led to strong sales growth of 35.6% in this segment compared to last year.
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SERVICING

Photofinishing and Technical Services

After closing two unprofitable stores during the year, the Group’s number of photofinishing
outlets under the Fotomax brand dropped to 64 compared to 66 at end-2016/2017. Each
store carried an average of 3.1 digital kiosks. Despite the decrease in the number of stores,
total sales remained stable, and comparable store sales showed a promising increase of 6.9%
following effective pricing and product strategies plus a wide range of successful focused
marketing campaigns.

The year under review saw the downward trend for photo printing continue, which caused
the total number of prints handled by the Group to fall 16.5% year on year. However, total
sales value for photo developing and processing declined by just 1.7% due to a revision of
the unit price per print and a remarkable increase in sales of professional ID photo prints,
which rose 6.7%. In order to sustain photo print sales for the long run, the Group has put
substantial effort into reminding customers of the value of preserving memorable images
through photo prints or photo books making rather than leaving them as digital files or

on their mobiles, where they are highly susceptible to damage and loss. In addition, we
continued to optimise our online ordering platform to help customers order prints in an
easier, more convenient way. Online printing is our sales channel of focus, both in recent
years and going forward, and this year we saw encouraging results with online photo prints
growing 9.9% compared to last year.

Personalised paper gift items recorded a drop of 9.8% in 2017/2018 compared to the
previous year. This was mainly due to soft sales of photobooks, which decreased 6%. Our
star photobook, ‘Year Album’, registered a decline of 3.3% due to fewer discounts being
offered compared to last year, when the new version of the Year Album was launched in
May 2016 and the Group supported it with a series of promotional campaigns.
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However, results for other key services in this segment showed notable growth that
helped offset the diminished sales in photo printing and personalised paper gift items.
Sales for our one-stop document solution service, DocuXpress, as well as our on-
demand printing service both continued to expand, registering growth of 6% and
13.1% respectively. In addition, following the introduction of the new Gift Plus service
in August 2017, our personalised non-paper gift items saw sales rise by 13.4% during
the year.

Professional AV Advisory and Custom Design and Installation Services

The Group continued to consolidate and expand its professional AV advisory and
custom design and installation services segment during the year. This segment targets
not only organisations in the commercial and public sectors, as it previously did, but
also individuals who want to pursue the enjoyment made possible by smart homes and
advanced AV technology. After expanding its new product portfolio to include state-of-
the-art, high-tech AV systems, and gaining valuable experience by taking part in certain
high-profile projects in recent years, the Group is now well able to compete at the high
end of the market, winning several sought-after jobs like theme park hotel projects

and the refurbishment of the Old Murray Building in Admiralty. This segment has now
recorded two consecutive years of sales growth, including an encouraging 16.8%
increase for 2017/2018 compared to last year.
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BRAND MANAGEMENT

The Group’s strong digital camera sales were driven by a series of new advanced FUJIFILM
camera launches in 2017/2018. The FUJIFILM X-E3 introduced many new features and is
the first X Series model to feature Bluetooth® low-energy wireless communication, which
enables users to pair the camera with a smartphone or tablet device for easy transfer

of pictures. X-E3 includes an all-new ‘Touch Function’ feature enabling gesture controls
like flick and pinch zoom, and an updated AF algorithm that enhances the camera’s
performance in tracking a moving subject. Another new camera was the FUJIFILM X-AS5,
which offers a host of features including a 180-degree tilting rear LCD screen, the latest
built-in Bluetooth® technology for easy and quick image transfer, and an extended battery
life with up to 450 frames possible per charge. In combination with the new collapsible
FUJINON XC15-45mmF3.5-5.6 OIS PZ lens, the X-A5 weighs just 496g, making it the
lightest camera-zoom kit lens combination in the X Series. Yet another new camera was
the FUJIFILM X-H1, which incorporates a range of extremely useful features that support
shooting in various situations demanded by professional photographers and videographers.
X-H1 is also the first camera in the X Series to include the ETERNA mode, a new film
simulation mode ideal for shooting movies.

The Group promoted these new camera models extensively through creative media
marketing promotions, advertising in traditional spaces such as bus stops, MTR stations,
and cinema and TV commercials as well as major online platforms such as Facebook and
YouTube.

During the year under review, a number of FUJIFILM digital cameras won prestigious
awards, gaining them wider public exposure and boosting digital camera sales. The
FUJIFILM X-T20, for example, triumphed at the 2017 EISA Awards, while several cameras
and accessories picked up prizes at the 2017 TIPA awards, including the GFX 50S, X-T2, X-T20
and X100F models along with the XF23mmF2 R WR lens.

EaRkaBEE

$2017/2018FEHHMN — R ZHFUJIFILMABH TS - SEMNWEIFAAKEERS o FUJIFILM
X-E3TE Z @hEE » 2B RIRAKAELFEBluetooth®E R B NAEMXAFIME - BT EaKES
HEERFRESIEEY S EBHEH - X-IB3RAZFNBRTEE] TEAKBNERS T2
H o HEBYWEEZNCEH » SCEBRBIHETRBOME - B —FFEEFUJIFILM X-ASEEZE
Thee - @?E@H%‘USOFLCDEE/T\E B ¥R EBluetooth®H M {ERIE RENE B ERREREM
Em-—RARETHEURBRRZ4505REH © BER L2 AITEMNFUJINON XC15-45mmF3.5-5.6
oIS Pziﬁﬁﬂv ' X-ASEERBE496% 0 RXAIEEFEBEEHL P REIGH o MFUJIFILM X-HI1BIES
—RIIBERAIIE TR EEEREFMANBEMESESS THNABER - X-HIT R E PG
ETERNAMERI B FFEMIERNWXRTIEH - BEARBEREEH -

SEERASHEYEE  ESEESEEANE LTI  BEEREBRNERESURTER LY
A WFacebook & YouTube &2 EEZ 5 5 A SR

REBEFER @ FUIFILMBEES S ERERE  BES TEARPNEXRE » HimRIBEEERKE
€5 o BHIME FUJIFILM x-noé.éi%zonimy\j:é » BT HEEREHTRES2017ETIPAKE -
& AEFEGFX 50S ~ X-T2 » X-T208X100FE 8% LA K XF23mmF2 R WREEEE ©



In November 2017, the Group launched the new FUJIFILM Instax SHARE SP-3, an
instant photo printer available in black or white finishes that can print medium-sized
square instant photos. It includes pastiche and template functions, which allow users

to group and mix up to nine photos and print them in a single photo as well as to add
wording to their photos. In the same month, the popular Instax SQUARE SQ10 Black
camera was supplemented by a white version that includes newly added capabilities for
filtering colours to achieve special effects.

In skincare, the Group supplemented its line with the launch of new and improved
ASTALIFT beauty products, including the Brightening Mask (a refined whitening mask),
Cream S, Emulsion S, BB Cream, Loose Powder and, after year-end, ASTALIFT White
Clear Treatment. We also ran a number of promotional offers to capture consumer
interest and sales.

During the year the Group continued to explore initiatives and strategies to bring more
customers to the www.astalift.com.hk online sales platform. Promotional codes and
trial kit registrations encouraged first-time users to sample ASTALIFT products via the
website. Monthly EDMs introduced members to new products and promoted special
offers at the ASTALIFT online shop. We collaborated with a popular beauty magazine
to build the ASTALIFT brand and remained active in updating and sharing news on our
social media platform. We sent trial products to key opinion leaders (KOLs) including
influential beauty bloggers and YouTubers, encouraging them to use their platforms

to share details of ASTALIFT products. We also ran two roadshows at popular AEON
department stores, one in Kornhill and the other in Tuen Mun, which highlighted the
Group’s major beauty products and offered special privilege packages to interested
shoppers.
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In consumer electronics and household appliances, the Group’s AV Life store in IFC Mall
opened its doors once again in September 2017 following an extensive makeover. The
refreshed store brings together all our flagship large TVs and is designed to provide
customers with total excellence in audio and visual quality. The IFC store now offers large
TVs from major global brands including the Sony 100" Z9D Android TV, the Sony 77" Al
OLEDTV, the LG 77" W7 wallpaper TV and the Samsung 88” QLED TV. It also recently
featured the classic McIntosh brand’s MXA80 mini hi-fi system. The Group celebrated the
reopening of the IFC shop with special promotions of as much as 60% off certain items,
along with exclusive gifts for purchasers.

In November 2017, the Group opened its new AV Life store in Tuen Mun Town Plaza.
Designed in a trendy loft style, the store is divided into exclusive zones for various AV
products, including one with JVC 4K projectors and OS 110" projection screens to give
customers the full large-screen experience. The Group also supported this opening with
promotional discounts and special gifts.

Over the Christmas and New Year period, the Group maintained consumer interest in

its AV Life stores and products through various promotions, from gifts such as entrance
tickets and vouchers to the talk-of-the-town ‘AlA Great European Carnival’ and Hong Kong
Disneyland Theme Park.
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In photofinishing services, Fotomax once again promoted its popular Year Album
heavily through print and online media advertorials where several prominent parent
KOLs shared their experiences using Year Album to organise and store photos of their
children while influential travel bloggers showed how they use the service to manage
all the beautiful pictures taken during their journeys. The Group also continued to run
regular bi-monthly workshops for customers on how to get the most out of their Year
Album software. EDMs were circulated to members about the workshops, offering
special reduced ticket prices and a free 19-page A5 album after the lesson.

We held a number of D&P promotions throughout the year during peak and festive
seasons, often leveraging our licensed characters to encourage consumers to print their
photos in unique and interesting formats. We supplemented Hello Kitty promotions
during Easter and autumn by introducing the well-known Sanrio character Keroppi in
the summertime. Over Chinese New Year, we featured Mickey and Friends cartoon
characters dressed in traditional Chinese costume as part of the Group’s festive
promotions, and designed CNY image items such as Fai Chun and CNY greeting cards
that incorporate these popular cartoon characters.

Intensive advertising helped drive results for the Group’s ID Photo service. This included
running advertorials in print media as well as posting on online platforms. During the
year we also placed emphasis on the service’s special features, such as professional
shooting corners that provide greater privacy, a total satisfaction guaranteed service
including unlimited shooting time, and a care service for photo shooting for babies and
children.

The Group continued to engage in group-buying promotions via HoKoBuy (previously
known as Groupon) and HKTVmall. Photo calendars sold at discounted prices through
group purchase achieved satisfactory results.
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In mid-August the Group launched its brand-new personalised image gift service, Gift Plus,
though only online ordering was available in the first phase (August to October) to enable
a smoother trial run for the entire system. The launch included special trial prices to attract
customers, supported by in-store leaflets and EDMs. In mid-October we launched the
second phase of Gift Plus, which included shop sample displays and intensive promotions.
We also produced special designs for Christmas and Valentine’s Day to leverage these
traditionally strong sales seasons.

OUTLOOK

Having turned the Group’s performance around over the past year, management is
confident in the initiatives that it will be taking in the coming year to maintain these good
results. We have identified key growth areas in our major business segments, and we will
be focusing resources on them going forward.

Among these initiatives, we will rationalise our consumer electronics and home appliances
retail business in terms of product and brand distribution. This includes selling mainly AV
products at our AV Life stores to reinforce the brand’s professional, pioneering role in the
market, while selling home appliance products at our Wai Ming stores.

In photography, our priority will be developing our new personalised gift platform, which
promises to be very popular with consumers, while continuing to promote ID photo-
taking, online printing and document solutions. By leveraging our investment in the new
Emagination solution, which we introduced in August 2017, we will further enhance the
product range of our non-paper personalised gift items through our Gift Plus service.

The advanced technology of the Emagination solution allows customers to mix and
match multiple layers of templates to create their own personalised gifts. Not only are
the gifts unique, they are also great fun to create. We are in the process of applying our
many exclusive product licences to the template designs to further increase the value of
Emagination.
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We believe the Gift Plus service will provide us with opportunities at the B2B level,
bringing an additional income source to the Group. We intend to target corporate
customers who like to deliver personalized gifts to their VIP clients and business
partners. Another area of potential expansion will involve the Group leveraging its
valuable character licenses (for example, Sanrio and Disney characters) to market
personalised party packs to party organisers in Hong Kong.

At Fotomax, we will continue to educate consumers on how easy it is to lose images
taken on mobile devices, and that the best way to avoid the loss of precious personal
images is to print them. The Group is in the process of modifying its 200-plus shop
digital kiosks so that they can easily receive image files directly from mobile phones for
printing, whether they are stored in photo albums on a phone’s internal memory or in
social media accounts. We also making a special effort to ensure customers know they
can use our mobile website to place photo orders from their mobile phones whenever
they wish.

In the year ahead, the Group plans to conduct a series of Fotomax roadshows at
strategic locations across town, where staff will demonstrate our variety of imaging
products, promote the brand, and communicate the importance and value of image
storage and application.
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In skincare, we will continue to introduce new products to keep the ASTALIFT brand fresh
and expand its customer base. In May and June 2018, we will launch a new ASTALIFT
‘Scalp Focus’ series consisting of essence, shampoo and conditioner for all-round haircare
treatment.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Group prides itself on a corporate culture based on robust governance principles. This
means its processes and decision-making are transparent and accountable, and they are
reviewed on a regular basis to remain in line with international best practice. Part of our
corporate culture is based on a tradition of fostering positive working relationships at every
level of our enterprise, including with business partners and suppliers, customers and staff.
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STAFF DEVELOPMENT

To remain at the forefront of the fields in which it operates, the Group strives to keep
its staff well trained and highly skilled at every level. As some of its business segments
deal with the latest in IT and computing developments, the Group is investing resources
to ensure its staff receive appropriate training in these areas and can deal with rapid
change as necessary. This involves offering in-house training courses or training under
external providers.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In the year under review, the Group continued to nurture the sport of squash by

once again sponsoring the Hong Kong Squash ‘FUJIFILM Mini-squash Scheme’. It

also continued its longstanding relationship with The Community Chest of Hong

Kong by donating to the Community Chest’s ‘Greening for the Chest’ programme,
which encourages schools, companies and organisations to build a cleaner, greener
environment for the next generation while at the same time raising funds for the needy.
As in previous years, Fotomax continued to donate HK$1 to The Community of Chest of
Hong Kong for each individual purchase of a designated cartoon character feature front
border 8F (8” x 12”) photofinishing service. The Group also loaned some of its digital
cameras free of charge to NGOs, which used the cameras to providing photography
lessons.
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AV Life is a one stop solution for all your home
entertainment needs, we offer comprehensive
range of home entertainment audio-visual
products, including ultra-high-definition TVs,
OLED TVs, home theater systems, amplifiers
and speakers. Our staff are dedicated to
provide the most professional audio-visual
advisory and customer design and installation
services, extending to the design of high-end

audio-visual rooms.

ifc mall, Central UNY, Wang Tau Hom Olympian City, Tai Kwok Tsui Tuen Mun Town Plaza, Tuen Mun
Sogo Dept. Store, Causeway Bay K11 Art Mall, Tsim Sha Tsui East Point City, Tseung Kwan O
APITA, Quarry Bay New Town Plaza, Shatin Tsuen Wan Plaza, Tsuen Wan
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Executive Directors’ Information
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Mr Sun Tao Hsi Ryan
HITEE
Executive Director

4 FB5LEE
Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley

GIEFERITHARE
Deputy Chairman & CEO

2 BREELE
Mr Liu Hui Allan
BIHFHITEE
Independent Non-executive Director

3 BHELE
Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen
FHITESE
Non-executive Director
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Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis, BBS, P, aged 67, is the Chairman of China-
Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited, responsible for the
overall management and strategic business development of the
Group. He joined the management team of the Group in 1976

and has over 40 years of experience in the photographic products
industry.

Dr Sun is the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Photo Marketing
Association, Life Honorary Advisor of the Photographic Society of
Hong Kong, Vice Patron of The Community Chest of Hong Kong.

Dr Sun is the Honorary President of The Hong Kong Management
Association. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited. He was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star in 1999 and appointed Justice of the Peace in 2002.

Dr Sun holds a Bachelor’s degree in Pharmacy from the University of
Oklahoma, USA and a Doctorate degree in Philosophy in Business
Administration from Southern California University for Professional
Studies. He is the Honorary Fellow of the City University of Hong
Kong and Chapter Honoree of the City University of Hong Kong
Chapter of Beta Gamma Sigma. He is the son of Mr Sun Chieh Yeh,
former Honorary Chairman and founder of China-Hongkong Photo
Products Holdings Limited.
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Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm
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Independent Non-executive Director

BUHBITESE HITEE
Independent Non-executive Director

Executive Director

RESLEE  BE40R - BPEREREMEESER  Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley, aged 40, is the Deputy Chairman and
ARAZBEIEFERITHAR - HREKMA2005F AL  Chief Executive Officer of China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings
CHEBESEBEECEENSHEERIEHE  Limited. He joined the Group in 2005 and is currently responsible for
HEFEEBRE - BRTASEZHEP—BHE2A  the supervision of the overall marketing and sales areas as well as
FA-ETRYEMERLTZESHLE - EMA  the Group’s business development. He is also the Managing Director
EEA  BRE2RRAARELTRAEZESLFME  of Fuji Photo Products Co., Ltd., one of the subsidiary companies
B EEFEERZITBHEESE c BK#EEZERE  of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Sun has worked in Fuji
BEEXBEABEELBYRIFPERELTZM c R  Photo Film Co. Ltd., both in Japan and the United States of America,
EEEXFERABELZF - where he conducted marketing work for their imaging business. Mr
Sun holds a Bachelor of Science degree and a Master of Business
Administration degree from Cornell University, Ithaca, New York,
USA. He is the son of Dr Sun Tai Lun, Chairman of the Group.

REEXLT  Bodm 0 BT EBHESRMEESERSL  Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen, aged 64, is an executive director of China-

FZHITES - RRMI978EMAREE - WAL  Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited. Ms Ng joined the Group

ENMERTRIAEBELELR - RKEEHEE  in 1978. She has extensive finance and administrative experience

EESOERMTHRE HEB—RELERNKE  with the Group, having helped it to grow from a local Fuji products

B RRRBEER  FEBRBEMABEMNKE  trading company in Hong Kong in 1980s to a leading photographic

HEMMBRETER wholesale and retail distributor in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau.

FREBEEE 308 BENEBEESAREREMESE  Mr Sun Tao Hsi Ryan, aged 36, graduated from Widener University,
BRE  ZEIFHEESHRELIRABEEERE  Pennsylvania, USA with double degrees in Accounting Business
THEN  REAELAETBERZEE  WEEZE  Administration and Hospitality Management. Mr Sun is a member
IHERMESZEIERE o I HAHEPERFE  of The Y. Elites Association (“YEA”) and a vice president of the
EREB-—FTEEE2RFBEIE - ZALBRBARE  Business Development Research Association in YEA. Besides, he
EEP-REMBACNBPIERRREMAE - RE4E  had spent 3 years in a military academy in his high school years. Mr
REEFFERAGBEBLZART » FEREEEIERE  Sun is currently a departmental business development Director of a
RITBAARZRBLAEEZHH © subsidiary of the Group. Mr Sun is the second son of Dr Sun Tai Lun
Dennis, the Chairman of the Group, and the younger brother of Mr
Sun Tao Hung Stanley, the Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group.
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Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm, aged 69. Mr Au holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Chemical Engineering and a Master of Science
degree in Food Science both from the University of Wisconsin,

USA and a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Toronto, Canada. Mr Au has over 30 years’ experience
in management. Mr Au is an independent non-executive director of
Convenience Retail Asia Limited.

Mr Li Ka Fai David, aged 63, is currently the deputy managing
partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co. CPA (Practising). He is also a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, UK as well as the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He is an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the audit committee and

a member of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of Cosmopolitan International Holdings
Limited, an independent non-executive director, a member of the
audit committee, a member of the nomination committee and

the chairman of the remuneration committee of China Merchants
Port Holdings Company Limited, an independent non-executive
director, a member of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited,
an independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit
committee, a member of the nomination committee and a member
of the remuneration committee of Goldlion Holdings Limited, an
independent non-executive director and the chairman of the audit
committee of Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited
and an independent non-executive director and the chairman of audit
committee of Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings Limited.

Mr Liu Hui Allan, age 61, Mr Liu graduated from the Beijing
University of International Business and Economics and the
Westminster University of United Kingdom. Mr Liu has over 30 years
of experience in foreign direct investments in China, especially in

the consumer and retail sectors. He was formerly the president of
The China Retail Fund LDC, a direct investment fund he founded in
1996, co-sponsored by American International Group. Mr Liu has also
been a partner of the private equity business of PAG, a Pan Asian
asset management group managing US$16 billion. Mr Liu is currently
serving as a partner of an US asset management company, Versant
Group and its Asia chairman.

Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan, GBS, MBE, |P, aged 67, is the chairman
and the group chief executive officer of VTech Holdings Limited, co-
founded the group in 1976. Dr Wong holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Electrical Engineering from The University of Hong Kong,
a Master of Science degree in Electrical and Computer Engineering
from the University of Wisconsin and an Honorary Doctorate of
Technology from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is the
deputy chairman and an independent non-executive director of

The Bank of East Asia, Limited, and an independent non-executive
director of Li & Fung Limited and MTR Corporation Limited.
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Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen, aged 42, joined the Fung Group in
2001. Mr Fung is the chief executive officer of Fung Kids (Management)
Limited under Fung Retailing Limited (“FRL”). Mr Fung is also a
director of FRL, a member of the Fung Group.

Apart from engaged in important positions in the Fung Group for
several years, Mr Fung has also gained management experience

in Japan and U.S.A. In 2002 and 2003, Mr Fung transferred to a
private equity company in New York of which was under Fung Group
USA, focusing on consumer products. Besides, in 2006 to 2008,
Mr Fung was appointed as a reporting and portfolio management
vice president by Aetos Japan, a real estate fund in Japan. Mr Fung
returned to the Fung Group the instant year and was appointed the
chief financial officer of Toys“R”Us Asia the following year. Until 1st
November, 2011, Mr Fung was promoted to the chief executive
officer of Fung Kids (Management) Limited. Mr Fung graduated
from Boston College with a Bachelor of Arts degree, and graduated
from the International University of Japan with a Master of Business
Administration degree.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present its fourth Environmental, Social

and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “Report”) of the Group. This
Report provides an annual update on the sustainability performances,
accomplishments, and challenges of the Group over the past years. It
has been updated to reflect the interest of various stakeholders.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report details the ESG performances of the Group for the period
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 (the “Reporting Period”). We apply
the concept of materiality in the planning and development of the
Report — unless otherwise indicated, the Report focuses on the retail
and distribution businesses as they have the most significant impact
to the investors and other stakeholders.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This Report fulfils all the “comply or explain” provisions with the
disclosure of mandatory Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) as well
as some recommended KPIs stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide
— as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. According
to the guideline, the following principles are underpinned:

1. Materiality:
Environmental, social, and governance issues that have major
impacts on investors and other stakeholders must be set out
in this Report.

2. Quantitative:
If the key performance indicators (KPIs) have been established,
they must be measurable and applicable to valid comparisons
under appropriate conditions. They must also be able to
describe the purpose and impacts of quantitative information.

3. Balance:
This Report must provide an unbiased picture of the
environmental, social, and governance performance of the
Group. It should avoid selecting, omitting, or presenting
formats that may inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment by the reader.

4. Consistency:
This Report should use consistent and disclose statistical
methodologies to allow meaningful comparisons of related
data over time. Any changes to the methods used must be
specified in the Report.
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Type of Air Emissions

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
As part of the business strategies, the Group engages with the

stakeholders via various channels on relevant issues including the
sustainability performances and challenges. The Group identifies and
prioritises key stakeholders from time to time, and formulates its

engagement approaches through survey and regular engagement
sessions. With the integrated approach, the Group is enabled

to better focus on the strategy to enhance the sustainability

performances and develop action plans for the future.

A.

Emission Source

Environment

The Group endeavours to balance the needs of business
growth and the harmonious development of people growth
and nature. The Group integrates various environmental
protection initiatives across its businesses, daily procedures,
operations and policies, and is committed to make
continuous improvements and enhance resource utilisation
efficiency through a wide range of measures to mitigate the
environmental influence. Various low-carbon and emission
reduction measures are employed in order to achieve

the reduction in electricity, fuels, and other resources
consumptions. There were no cases of significant breach of
local environmental laws and regulations during the Reporting
Period.

1. Mitigation of Air and Green House Gas (GHG) Emissions

The major source of air emission the Group associated
was the fuel consumed by the Group’s vehicles for
goods logistics and distribution to retail shops and
customers. During the Reporting Period, the Group
owns 5 trucks to fulfil the above purposes. Apart from
the electricity consumption, the fuel consumption by
vehicles was also the major source of GHG emission.
In order to minimise the air and GHG emissions, the
Group established operational protocols to ensure the
effective use of vehicles.

Emission (in tonnes)

EERBERRAREY BERRIR HepkE (LAmESt)
SOX Consumption of fuel by the Group’s vehicles 0.37
mEy SEEE#HEHEER

NOX -ditto- 323.25
AGLD Eils

PM -ditto- 32.04
BENT &£

Total 355.66
BE

"1 -HREHENERERE

RBEHE > SEZEBRAMER
HWER(EZRHME‘Y - RELY
REER T )M E3601 o

Table 1 — Air Emissions during the Reporting Period

There were approximately 360 tonnes of air emissions
(mainly sulphur oxides (SOx), nitrogen oxides (NOx)
and particulate matter (PM)) emitted from the Group’s
operation during the Reporting Period.
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Table 2 — Green House Gas Emissions during the Reporting Period

RBEHE  SENEEBREER

#1,470M —EtiEE
RERH-HH(CO,)

cFERE
B 2 (CH,)

%u—'—_wt AN,0) - FERERE
ERZEENBEEESIM -

2. BEREFER BT

%%ﬁpfﬁd\ﬂTEEFﬂELun
Eb/ \/E§% Fﬁﬁ Fﬁ %
uﬂ&ﬂ’hm *s,%ﬁi%z 371,130
TERK REEEANRBEESR
4879T R SEEEHHARE
EAEBHNE23,0402F BENE
BEEBATAH - RIREHAE - &
ElmEERARBERREPR
BE-BRERMARSE  BERIA
E BN EEKMEZSEEHN
2EHEEERB/BER-BERE
WERBEZHIEEREEFHELER
PURAERBE - REREERZIE
AFEREER  RESCESR -
flan > BERBIRALR  BRE
ES2BUR  HAMR)EEE/NE
BsEHE o

There were approximately 1,470 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) emitted from the Group'’s
operation during the Reporting Period. The major GHG
were mainly carbon dioxide (CO,), methane (CH,) and
nitrous oxide (N,O). The annual GHG emission intensity
was approximately 3 tonnes per employee.

Energy Consumption and Conservation

The Group is committed to reducing energy consumption
throughout the production and operation processes. For the
Reporting Period, the total electricity consumption from the
Group’s operation was approximately 2,371,130 kilowatt
hours, with an energy intensity of approximately 4,879
kilowatt hours per employee, in addition to the total fuel
consumption by the Group’s vehicles was approximately
23,040 litres, with an intensity of approximately 47 litres
per employee. During the Reporting Period, the Group
replaced and concentrated all physical servers into a general
virtual server, of which brought considerable reduction on
electricity used. Furthermore, the Group replaced all lights
bulbs with LED light bulbs in all retail shops, in addition

to reduce fuel consumption by placing signs to remind
employees of idling vehicles. The Group also adopts
various sustainable procurement measures to advocate
green product awareness. For instance, computer hardware
that is easy to be upgraded, recycled and contains a low
level of poisoning metals (cadmium, lead and mercury) is
given priority in the procurement.
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Table 3 — Resources Consumption during the Reporting Period

Mitigation of Waste

There were approximately 80 tonnes of hazardous
waste and 4 tonnes of non-hazardous waste discharged
from the Group’s operation in the Reporting Period.
The annual emission intensity of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste were 0.2 and 0.01 tonnes per
employee respectively. In view of the increase of
chemical waste along with the growing business, the
Group applies the principle of “Waste Reduction at
Source” to mitigate waste generation. The controls and
measures are listed as below:

Each department of the Group is required to
conduct waste segregation before disposal.

Chemical waste is collected and processed by
licensed chemical waste collectors.

Other wastes generated in general operation
are collected and processed by waste recyclers.
For instance, photographic paper, paper, metal
foil, fluorescent tubes, photocopier cartridges
and batteries.

Waste handling processes and policies are
reviewed by the Group regularly.

Amount of Intensity
Waste (emission/

Type of Waste Emission Source (in tonnes) employee)
EEERYp R BERORIR BEEYE (LM ZEGRE ES)
Hazardous waste Spent Photofinishing Solution 77.47 0.16
BEBEEY W R EN AR A%
Non-hazardous waste General Operation 3.99 0.01
EEEZRY —REE
Total 81.46 0.17
st

R4 -HEHNBNEEREZERYE

Table 4 —

Amount of Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste during the

Reporting Period
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Reduction of Water Usage

The sustainable and responsible use of water
resources is a key issue globally. We are aware that
water shortages, excessive demand and usage could
pose a serious problem to the environment. Due to
our business nature, we do not use or discharge a
significant amount of water. During the Reporting
Period, the water consumption of the Group was
approximately 810 cubic metres with an intensity of
1.7 cubic metres per employee. In order to raise the
awareness on water conservation, our Group closely
monitors the use of water and promotes water saving
practices in the workplace. For instance, we place
signs in lavatories and pantries to raise awareness and
encourage employees to reduce consumption.

Use of Packaging Materials

Engaging in retail and distribution businesses, the
Group’s packaging materials mainly consist of carton
boxes, bubble wrap and plastic wrap. Approximately
1,390 tonnes of packaging materials were used for
product delivery in the Reporting Period, comprise of
three major materials used in our product packaging,
including carton box (approximately 1,019 tonnes),
bubble bag (approximately 309 tonnes) and plastic
wrap (approximately 61 tonnes). The Group promotes
the minimum use of packaging materials in all business
activities.

Categories and Amount of Packaging Materials Used

RN B HE

(1,019.18 tonnes M) AN / (309.27 tonnes M)

(61.35 tonnes M)

& 1 HEHENERBEYR I ERFAE Chart 1 Categories and Amount of Packaging Materials Used during the
Reporting Period
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Social

The Environment and Natural Resources

With respect to our business nature and activities, the
impact of the Group on the environment and natural
resources is not significant. Consumption of energy
mainly stemmed from the use of electricity, water and
papers in office areas. During the Reporting Period, we
have stipulated a number of measures to reduce the
use of resources and disposal of waste.

We will continue to assess the environmental risks of
our business, review the environmental practices and
adopt preventive measures as necessary to reduce the
risks, and ensure the compliance with relevant laws
and regulations.

Over the years, driven by the belief of “Employee is the

most valuable asset and the key to the business growth and

success”,

the Group devoted substantial resources to create a

fair, safe and healthy working environment for the employees,

while articulated policies and guidelines to support an

effective training system. This has successfully expanded the

horizons for employees’ career development and encouraged

their personal growth.

The Group’s social policy adhere to the following principles:

1.

Respect the Employee

All employees’ fundamental equality of dignity and
rights is to be respected so that they are treated
justly and equitably. Employees who demonstrate
outstanding work initiatives are identified and
cultivated to reach their greatest potential.

Aspire to Perfection

Together with the delivery of highest product quality
to customers, all employees are encouraged to provide
their best service in achieving excellence.

Serve the Community

Employees shall delight and satisfy every customer
by providing attentive service. The Group maintains
a peaceful and harmonious working atmosphere and
advocates a modest and humble lifestyle.

Contribute to the Society

All employees are encouraged to fulfil the obligations
to promote social prosperity through participating
social welfare activities and comply with the law.
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Employment and Labour Standards

The majority of the Group’s employees locate in Hong
Kong. No child labour or forced labour was recruited
by the Group. During the Reporting Period, the Group
strictly complied with the relevant labour laws.

The Group adheres to the principles of fairness

and justice in the recruitment processes, training
opportunities, assighment of responsibilities and
remuneration policies. All employees are treated
equally; discrimination is strictly prohibited towards
employees of different gender, age, nationality, marital
status, religion and ethnicity. The Group revises
policies and procedures regarding anti-discrimination,
recruitment and promotion, dismissal and rest period
regularly. During the Reporting Period, the Group
had no reported incidents of discrimination or other
employment-related issues.

Labour Rights and Welfares

The Group protects employees’ rights through the
development of labour policy and compliance with
related laws strictly. In addition to the basic rights
stipulated in Hong Kong legislation, the Group
provides employees with various welfare and benefits.
Employees are entitled to a discretionary performance
bonus, mandatory provident fund, medical welfare
and hospital allowance, various types of paid leaves
(marriage, study and examination, compensation,
paternity, maternity and funeral leaves) in addition to
annual leave and sick leave. Details are set out in the
Staff Handbook to ensure transparency of information
on the employees’ responsibilities and rights. The
Group’s essential policies and procedures are also
included in the Staff Handbook which is reviewed and
updated regularly.

Taking full account of employees’ interests and needs,
the Group offers comprehensive and competitive
remuneration package to attract and retain talents
and boost the competitive edge. The Group endorses
the staff performance appraisal system under which
promotion opportunities and salary adjustments are
based on individual work performance. Based on this
equitable principle, the system successfully motivates
employees and promotes the realisation of self-value.

Compare to the previous year, there was no significant
change in total numbers of employee (2017: 481).

As at end of the Reporting Period, there were 486
employees in the Group’s workforce, of which the
compositions are illustrated as follows:
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Employee Health and Safety

During the Reporting period, the Group strictly
complies with the occupational health and safety
guidelines and laws recommended by Labour
Department and Occupational Safety and Health
Council. In addition, the Group advocates the smoke-
free culture through establishing smoke-free policy
and regularly encourages employees to participate in
health workshops. The Group also takes responsibilities
for the occupational health and safety in the offices.
The Group appoints external cleaning companies to
conduct annual cleaning (carpets, dust filters of air-
conditioners and fan) of stores and offices.

In the daily operations of the Group, the risk of work
injury mainly arises from manual handling operations.
In order to protect the safety and health of employees
and to minimise the risk involved, the Group advocates
safe manual handling operations through the provision
of satisfactory working conditions, good working
practices, proper use of mechanical aids and protective
devices, adequate safety and health information, and
sufficient safety training.

Development and Training

The Group believes that equipping employees with in-
depth industry knowledge and practices can create
distinct competitive advantage and boost corporate
image. In view of this, the Group is committed

to developing and implementing a number of
comprehensive training schemes for the employees.
During the Reporting Period, the Group provided
approximately 1,400 hours for employee training. The
following is an overview of the wide ranges of training
schemes.

On-Board Training Scheme — This scheme
enables new hires to understand the history,
mission, structure, welfares policies, and
corporate social responsibilities of the Group.

Training Scholarship Scheme — This scheme
encourages employees to pursue continuing
education and take part in work-related training
courses.

Mandatory Training Scheme — This scheme
aims at enriching employees’ experience

and broadening their knowledge of industry
intelligence. The Group will assign the
employees to participate in external seminars
and product launch activities if necessary.

Operation and Job Skill Training Scheme — This
scheme is designed to provide employees
with the skills and job knowledge to meet the
standard of the Group.
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5. e eI 5. Supply Chain Management
ATHEFRHSHE - Z2NAE In order to provide customers high quality, safe and
ENER SEFETREZEHN responsible products, the Group formulated a robust
HESEEEER  UERRMUE and transparent supply chain management system for
B BRTREFNATESNEZEN selecting suppliers. In addition to the selection criteria
ERENSHREZEN  SETE such as good company background and comprehensive
EEELEEEERNUEERNE product information, the Group also focuses on high
7 - EESFIMRBHERK standard management practices and fulfilment of social
b responsibilities. The Group conducts performance

assessments and reviews on suppliers annually.
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Green Procurement

The Group recognises the critical role that supply

chain management plays to protect the environment.

In the procurement processes, the Group formulated
policies and measures, including a policy that gives
priority to the procurement of green products, such as
furniture made with chipboard, photocopiers and printer
with energy efficiency labels, recyclable laser printer
cartridges and recycled paper folders.

The Group is committed to delivering excellent products
that are produced in environmental-friendly supply
chains. FUJIFILM Japan, the Group’s major supplier for
photofinishing and processing equipment, cameras and
films, upholds environmental protection and focuses on
the chemical composition of the products.

As a leading photo product provider, the Group uses
a significant amount of paper. The Fotomax business
only purchases paper from Forest Stewardship Council
(FSC) certified suppliers. The Group regards FSC as the
gold standard in responsible forestry. FSC is one of the
most universally recognised certification systems that
prohibit the use of genetically modified trees, prevents
the conversion of natural forest to plantations and
requires a precautionary approach to the management
of areas with high conservation value.

The Group promotes environmental protection to the
customers. Refills are available for some products in
the skincare segment. In order to avoid hazardous
damage to the environment, electronic waste from
electronic products and household appliances segment
is delivered to recyclers for further processing before
disposal. The Group also encourages the minimum

use of plastic bags. In the retail segment, the Group
encourages the clients to reduce the use of plastic
bags.

In an effort to the Group’s pursuit of green design and
installation services, the Group is certified as green
buildings under independent third-party rating system
— Leadership in Energy and Environment Design
(LEED) award granted by the U.S. Green Building
Council. The Group strongly believes in the importance
of preserving the environment and has therefore
committed to developing practices that conform to
environmental protection.
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Product Responsibility

The Group is dedicated to providing high-quality
products and excellent services to the customers. The
Group established internal controls and compliance
procedures to ensure employees comply with all
applicable laws and regulations. Among others, the
Group has drawn up procedures to ensure products
comply with relevant laws and standards. The
procedures are listed as below:

The Group provides suppliers with market
updates and customer feedbacks through
regular meetings.

Suppliers must improve quality according to
the latest market demand.

Major suppliers must acquire international
safety certificates to prove their products meet
the safety standards.

The Group’s repairs, maintenance and quality
testing services are in compliance with
international standards.

The product value resulted from complaints
shall not exceed 0.03% of the total turnover
value.

During the Reporting Period, there was no reported
case of non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in regard to product responsibility.
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Anti-corruption

As an organisation with high ethical standards, the
Group requires all employees to uphold the anti-
bribery and anti-corruption regulations in all places
where the Group does business. The Group does not
tolerate any forms of bribery or corruption.

To support employees in acting in compliance with
the Group’s vision of ethical and responsible business
operations, the internal audit team is in place. The
internal audit team works to ensure adherence

to policies and regulations, conduct internal anti-
corruption training, enforce punishment when
necessary, and collaborate with the supervisory
committee for supervision and inspections.

In order to uncover potential compliance violations,
the Group developed whistleblowing policy and
mechanism. The whistleblowing channel is opened to
all employees. The Group provides detailed instructions
for using it. The employees can contact the internal
audit team directly at any time to seek guidance in
sensitive situations or to report the suspicious case.
The internal audit team will investigate possible
violations in the suspicious case.

If severe compliance violations occur, the Group
follows a zero-tolerance strategy. Following this
principle, when violations of integrity are identified,
investigated and confirmed, the internal audit team
initiates a set of appropriate sanctions. In the event
that systematic deficiencies or structural failures are
revealed, the internal audit team seeks to support
the law enforcement agencies. During the Reporting
Period, the Group complied with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to anti-corruption. In addition,
no allegations of corruption were made against the
Group.
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Community Investment

The Group is committed to the principle of “Caring
the Community, Giving back to the Society”. Through
playing an active role in promoting the charity
development in Hong Kong, the Group positions
itself at the frontline of local community service, and
a dedicated supporter of many charitable events
organised by the Community Chest of Hong Kong.

In addition to the engagement in various charity
activities, the top management of the Group also takes
up the leading role in many reputable charities. Dr Sun
Tai Lun Dennis, Chairman of the Group who is also the
Vice Patron of the Community Chest of Hong Kong;
Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley, Chief Executive Officer

of the Group, is the Board of Director and Executive
Committee Member of the Community Chest of Hong
Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group contributed to
the following donations, sponsorship and participated
in various charity events.

Society

Donation to “Greening for the Chest 2017-
20187

Donation to The Community Chest — “FUJIFILM
Instax Fun Charity”

Donation to The Community Chest — “Dress
Casual Day 2017”

Donation of sales profit from “Cartoon Character
Fun Border Photos”, whereas the Group would
donate to The Community Chest for every
purchase of particular photo products

Donation to The Community Chest — “Love
Teeth Day 2017”

Sponsored Jems event 2017
Sports Development

Donation to The Community Chest BEA —
Charity Golf Day 2018

Donation to Maggie’'s Cancer Caring Centre
Hong Kong — Charity Golf Day 2018

Donation to “Hong Kong Squash Open 2017”

Sponsored Discovery Bay Recreation Club —
Charity Tennis Cup 2017
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Child, Youth and Student Care

Sponsored Mother’s Choice — Gala Dinner 2018

Donation to The Child Development Centre —
“Daddy Daughter Ball 2017~

Co-operated with Hong Kong Young Men’s
Christian Association (YMCA) an internship
program, whereas youth can gain work
experience at the Group’s stores

Sponsored to Hong Kong Squash — “FUJIFILM
Easy Mini-squash Schools Scheme 2017/18”

Sponsored Save the Children Hong Kong —
Peppa Pig event

Sponsored MEG — “Let’s Move Summer School
2017 Microfilm Contest”

Sponsored The Society of the Academy for
Performing Arts — Annual Fundraising Ball 2017

Sponsored Raimondi College — 60th Anniversary
Celebration

Promoting Photography Culture

Sponsored “Paws by the Sea 2018”

Created and broke the Guinness World Records
for the largest photo album measured 30 m?

Sponsored Tsim Sha Tsui East Festive
llluminations 2017

Sponsored Festive Lighting in Sha Tin — Photo
Shooting Contest 2017

Donated undamaged office furniture to internal
staff, charities and people in need.
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During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of the
Corporate Governance Code by establishing appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems. Management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
systems, while the Board oversees management in performing its
duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management
and internal control systems are described in the sections below:

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises
the following phases:

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2017/18, no significant
risk was identified.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSO”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness

and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The components of
the framework are shown as follow:

Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should
be managed.

Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried out.

Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.
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In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

The executive directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2017/18, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is consisted
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually and the results are reported to the
Board via Audit Committee afterwards.

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have been
considered during the Board’s review which include but not limited
to (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since
the last annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and the external environment (ii) the scope and quality
of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal
control systems.

The Board, through its review and the review made by IA function
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate. Such systems,
however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk

of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. It is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training programs
and budget provided were sufficient.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s Annual
Report for the year ended 31 March 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board of the Company has committed to achieving high
corporate governance standards.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2018.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of Conduct
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model
Code for securities transactions by employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and should take decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 9 directors, consisting of 4 executive
directors, 1 non-executive director and 4 independent non-executive
directors.
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The Board of the Company comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors:

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis
(Chairman and Member of Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen
Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon (resigned on 31 March 2018)
Mr Sun Tao Hsi Ryan (appointed on 1 April 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee and Member of
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

Mr Li Ka Fai David
(Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr Liu Hui Allan
(Member of Audit Committee)

Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan
(Chairman of Nomination Committee and Member
of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Non-executive Director:
Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen (Member of Audit Committee)

The biographical information of the directors are set out in the section

» o«

headed “Executive Directors’ Information”, “Non-executive Director’s
Information” and “Independent Non-executive Directors’ Information”
on pages 24 to 27 of the annual report for the year ended 31 March

2018.

The relationships between the directors are disclosed in the respective
director’s biography under “Executive Directors’ Information”, “Non-
executive Director’s Information” and “Independent Non-executive
Directors’ Information”.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis and Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley respectively.
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive

Officer focuses on the Company’s business development and daily
management and operations generally.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board at all times
exceeded the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from

each of the independent non-executive directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all independent non-executive directors are independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors including independent non-executive
directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term of 3 years,
subject to renewal after the expiry of the then current term.

The Company’s Bye-laws provides that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment.

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being, or if their number is

not three of a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The retiring directors shall be eligible for re-election.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Dr Sun
Tai Lun Dennis, Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan, Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen
and Mr Sun Tao Hsi Ryan shall retire by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All directors have carried out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities

and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the following directors have
been provided with relevant reading material including legal and
regulatory update for their reference and studying:

Directors

Executive Directors

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm

Mr Li Ka Fai David

Mr Liu Hui Allan

Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan

Non-executive Director
Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.

The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request.
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The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set
out under “Board of Directors” on pages 45 and 46.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises one non-executive director and all
independent non-executive directors (including one independent
non-executive director who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise) with Mr Li Ka Fai David being the Chairman of the
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exactly
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the
Audit Committee include the following:

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and

annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them.

To act as key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relation with the external auditors, and to be primarily
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and to consider any
questions of their resignation or dismissal.

To review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls and
risk management systems.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review, in respect of

the year ended 31 March 2018, the interim and annual financial
results and reports and significant issues on the financial reporting,
operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and internal audit function,
appointment of external auditors and relevant scope of works

and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without
the presence of the executive directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members, namely,
Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm (Chairman of the Committee), Mr Li Ka
Fai David, Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis and Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan, the
majority of them are independent non-executive directors.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
functions of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy.

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and the senior
management.

To review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy
and structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and the senior management for the year under
review.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review the remuneration
policy and structure and determine the annual remuneration packages
of the executive directors and the senior management and other
related matters. The Human Resources Department is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee will consult the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these recommendations
on remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee, established in April 2012, comprises
four members, namely Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan (Chairman of the
Committee), Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm, Mr Li Ka Fai David and
Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis, the majority of them are independent non-
executive directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal
duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

To review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations regarding any proposed changes.

To identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors.

To assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of and succession planning for directors.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board

diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and

educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience. The Nomination Committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to
the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the independence
of the independent non-executive directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspective of the Board is
maintained.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out in the table below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HER/ERETAY
Other
Annual General
Nomination Remuneration Audit General Meetings
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting (if any)
[ES HitRR
EEY T Name of Director EE® [REZEE FMZEE BHKZEE BEAE KXE(WH)
BAfmiEL Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis 4/4 2/2 /1 N/A FER /1 N/A TEH
Bkt Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley 4/4  N/ATER NATEAR NATER /1 N/ATER
HERXEE Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon 4/4 N/ARER  NATEBR NATEA /1 N/A FEH
REELL Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen 4/4 N/ATER NATER NAFTEA /1 N/A TEA
BXHEE Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm 3/4 2/2 1/1 12 1/t N/A TER
FRERE Mr Li Ka Fai David 4/4 22 11 2/2 /1 N/A R
g SE Mr Liu Hui Allan 3/4 N/ATER  N/ATEA 1/2 0/1  N/A A
BEFRREL Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan 4/4 2/2 11 2/2 /1 N/A TER
BEEE Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen 3/4  N/ATEA  NATER 2/2 0/1 N/ATEA
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence
of executive directors during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Group about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 66 to 72.

The Audit Committee has the same view with the Board regarding
the selection and re-appointment of external auditors.

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2018 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The remunerations paid to the Group’s external auditors in respect of
audit services for the year ended 31 March 2018 is HK$1,980,000.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the

risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company'’s strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee, assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including project
management, sales and leasing, financial reporting, human resources
and information technology.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems have
been developed with the following principles, features and processes:

The Company is to fully satisfy and exceed the expectations

of the customers by delivering exceptional premium products
and services in the specialist fields of photography and imaging
services, digital cameras and electronic goods and services.

The Company is in a customer oriented industry, while customer
priorities are constantly changing and retail technology
environment is evolving rapidly.

The Board and Audit Committee are sufficiently versed in
governance, risk management, compliance and internal control.

The current risk management function is led by senior
management and functional needs (largely top-down).

The Company is committed to complying with legal and
regulatory requirements.

Risk analyses focus mainly on current strategic and operational
risks.

Ongoing assessments of the current approach are necessary
in light of changing internal and external drivers of business
success.
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All divisions/departments conducted internal control assessment
regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the business of the
Group and various aspects including key operational and financial
processes, regulatory compliance and information security. Self-
evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm that control
policies are properly complied with by each division/department.

The management, in coordination with division/department heads,
assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans,
and monitor the risk management progress, and reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and the effectiveness
of the systems.

The management has reported to the Board and the Audit Committee
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit
Department examined key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the year ended 31 March
2018, and considered that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual review also covered the financial reporting and internal
audit function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant
resources.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

Please also refer to the “Risk Management and Internal Control” from
pages 43 to 44 of this Report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

CONVENING A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Special general meetings may be convened by the directors on
requisition of shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting in accordance with
Section 74(3) of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS
Pursuant to Section 79 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all shareholders; or not less than 100 shareholders
may make requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting;

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous

enquiries.
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CONTACT DETAILS
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: 8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248 Texaco
Road, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company

Secretary)
Fax: 24090294
Email: enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meetings, directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Bye-laws. An up to date version of the Company’s
Bye-laws is also available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is principally
involved in (i) the marketing and distribution of photographic
developing, processing and printing products and sale of
photographic merchandises, skincare products, consumer electronic
products and household appliances; and (ii) the provision of technical
services for photographic developing and processing products,
professional audio-visual advisory and custom design and installation
service. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business activities as required by Schedule

5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong Kong, including a
fair review of the Group’s business as well as future development in
the Group’s business can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Operations Review” on pages 4 to 21 of this annual
report.

A summary of the key performance indicators of the Group set out
in the section headed “Financial Highlights” on pages 2 to 3 of this
annual report. During the year, no important event affecting the
Group has occurred.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The financial position of the Group remained sound and healthy
during the period under review. As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s
cash and bank balances were approximately HK$219 million with a
zero gearing ratio. Trade receivables of HK$48 million were recorded
as at 31 March 2018, while inventories were HK$192 million.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had 486 employees (2017: 481), remunerated largely
based on industry practice, including provident funds, insurance

and medical benefits. The Group also adopted a discretionary bonus
programme determined annually based upon the performance of the
Group and the employees.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 139.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2017: nil). The Board
of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend any final dividend for
the year.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements,
is set out below. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Year ended 31 March
BZE3A318LEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

¥ RESULTS BETT B¥Trx BETrx BT BETx

& Revenue 929,839 852,510 886,668 966,658 861,669

KATEBAELZ Profit/(Loss) for the year

FEREAN(BE) attributable to owners of

the Company 38,206 (19,436)  (70,480)  (33,289) 15,469

As at 31 March
M3A31H

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

g9E  AffR ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEERER NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BETRT BT BT BT BYETrx

BEEHARE Total assets 842,357 774,786 806,648 872,785 969,919

BEHEE Total liabilities 150,912 126,033 137,275 133,630 160,936

BEETE Net assets 691,445 648,753 669,373 739,155 808,983

R R Non-controlling interests (1,136) (1,853) (1,064) 552 (228)

690,309 646,900 668,309 739,707 808,755

MR BERBRMERZREYR

EARARAEEERFE2YE - BERREBERR
ENFBHFBINEAREEYBERRMEIZR
14 - AEERENE ZE-SHBHNE 1408 -

Bx%
RREEERCHTRANRFAREZE - XOFH
A BN IR K24

EERmA
ARBz ARSI ARELFAIERERTES
BRERSADAAMRARRIRFRLAIETH

B o
MR  MORHEFLAFZLTES

FRAAXAREEAHNBLARLEBE - BEHH
ERDNEEMLERRES ©

& ol
ARBRAEEEFRNZFHEEZBFED BN
BUBRRME2RGEEEEBR -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s investment
properties are set out on page 140.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year. Details of the Company’s share
capital is set out in note 24.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital redemption reserve
account of HK$490,378,000 and HK$1,619,000, respectively, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$290,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
and the largest customer accounted for 16% and 5% of the Group’s
total sales for the year, respectively. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 86% and 40% of the Group’s total purchases for the
year, respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company’s Bye-laws request that all directors and officers of

the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of their duty.

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance is arranged to cover all the
directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries against
any potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against
them.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis (Chairman)

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen

Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon (resigned on 31 March 2018)

Mr Sun Tao Hsi Ryan (appointed on 1 April 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr Au Man Chung Malcolm

Mr Li Ka Fai David

Mr Liu Hui Allan

Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan

Non-executive Director:
Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen
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In accordance with Bye-laws 110 and 101 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis, Dr Wong Chi Yun Allan, Mr Fung Yue
Chun Stephen and Mr Sun Tao Hsi Ryan will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from all independent non-executive directors, and as at the date of
this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 24 to 27 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company entered into a service contract with each of the
following directors for the provision of management services by these
directors to the Group:

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen
Mr Sun Tao Hsi Ryan

Each service contract has a remaining unexpired term of 12 months
as at 31 March 2018 and is subject to the termination by either party
upon giving three months’ notice to the other party.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities,
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:



Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
EAFIRERFE :
Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FERNEBE - BORERMEE

Directly Percentage of the
beneficially Founder Beneficiary Interest Company’s issued
Name of director Note owned of a trust of a trust of spouse Total share capital
{hARAF]
=R 3 7t 2EITRAEAZ
BENR Mt = BRER ERABA ZHA BB e B
Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis (i) - (iii) 1,000,000 700,034,214 11,242,000 220,000 712,496,214 60.11
BRARfmEL
Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley (iv) & (v) - - 711,276,214 - 711,276,214 60.01
LN
Ms Ng Yuk Wah Eileen 250,000 - - - 250,000 0.02
REELL
Mr Tang Kwok Tong Simon 1,142,000 - - - 1,142,000 0.10
HERLE
Mr Fung Yue Chun (vi) - — 70,000,000 — 70,000,000 5.91
Stephen
BWELE
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated corporations:
HBEER G REMENZITFE -
Percentage of
the associated
Name of Relationship Capacity and corporation’s
associated with the Number of nature of issued share
Name of director corporation Company Shares shares held interest capital
1K IEEECEEE
HEME HEEEER HEHAQRER RO BERHHE EHEME BTREAZBEDL
Dr Sun Tai Lun Searich Group  Company’s Ordinary shares 25 Beneficiary 25
Dennis Limited immediate (note (i)) of a trust
BAfmiEL holding
company
ApEzEHE EBROEG) EREZERA
ZERAAE
—ditto— —ditto— Ordinary shares 75 Founder 75
(note (ii)) of a trust
Ei B+t B MR (B EE (i) EFERIPEA
100 100
Dr Sun Tai Lun Fine Products Company’s Ordinary shares 103,000,000 Founder 100
Dennis Limited ultimate (note (ii)) of a trust
BARmHEL holding
company
ARATRZHEL  EBER M) EFERIPEA
ZERAAE
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)

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

(vi)

BRABELIHEESLEEAR QT 11,242,000
RERMDzERE - ZEROVE—BREBELH
B 2 A FDago CorporationBEE#HFE °
Dago Corporation#&Trident Trust Company (B.V.I.)
Limited (fFARRBRMELIRERKEREF R
MR 2 B1E{557EThe Dennis Family TrustzZ &t
AEB1)Fr# 48 ° Dago CorporationZiZE A Searich
Group Limited 2 21T IR 4x25%

HRE A fM1E L RThe Sun Family TrustZ &l
A Zf=7EFBFine Products Limited 2 238 8
TRA » HBEKBE L REBE S ine Products
Limited fT#$ 5 2700,034,2 14 A& 1 B R 17 2 1
#& © Searich Group LimitedZ B 2 1T IR ZX75%HH
Fine Products Limited#¥% ° Fine Products Limited
K Searich Group Limited i 781 Bl i 2 BRI 5
RTXEEZERRRAEMMEARRD REERTD 2
BERRR - -

BAGEIHREAEBEBHFIRLLT ZEEM
#75220,000R KD B RP 2z ° 3%220,0001%
ARABROEBERL T N2014FRE AT 2E
R o

BRELEEWRIESHEARA D F 11,242,000
BRERMDzERE - ZEROA—BREBELH
E M AL Z A BDago Corporation E A °
Dago Corporation#Trident Trust Company (B.V.1.)
Limited FRARFRBAME LI RERKRE (B1EH
LS ) FER MR A 2 BI15157EThe Dennis Family
TrustZ 2 A 517) FT#H ° Dago CorporationZi i
HSearich Group Limited 2 84T R 2<25% ©

EE}FM%%EEHEE%The Sun Family TrustZ 3 &%

s 157E#58Fine Products Limited 2 28 8
TTH§$ WRBEA L E R BB Fine Products
Limited$$75 2700,034,2 14 A B R 1 2 s ©
Searich Group Limited Z E % 1T }% X 75% Hi Fine
Products Limited#7% ° Fine Products Limited &
Searich Group LimitedfTi5A AR R ZERFHR
T EEZRRREMEARRD RIBERG 2 &
BsRKE -8

HRBWELEER —ERFEFK2ZHEA  HSBC
Trustees (C.I.) LimitediEEZEEMZTEA - BUS
R L EWIR BEBHSBC Trustees (C.I.) Limited
#5748 270,000,000 7~ X B IR 13 Z #E & ° HSBC
Trustees (C.1.) LimitedfTiFA A AR 2 ERFR
TXEERRREMEARRD KA 2
wmRKRB 18 -

F%tﬁlﬁﬂﬁz ZEHN 0 R2018F3H31H - ARAAE

%Kzfﬁz

)

R AR AR
R AR BI 352 A BRI 2 B
RS

BB ATRAQRAHEEAREEECE
%Xiﬁﬁiﬂlﬂﬁ EBXVER) 2R ~ HEARG S
mAREE S
A SR
BIZBAE DR KRR ©

Note:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in a total of 11,242,000
shares in the Company directly held by Dago Corporation, which is a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is owned by Trident
Trust Company (B.V.l.) Limited in its capacity as the trustee of The Dennis
Family Trust, a discretionary trust established for the benefit of Dr Sun Tai
Lun Dennis and his family members. Dago Corporation also holds 25% of

the issued share capital of Searich Group Limited.

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in 700,034,214 shares
in the Company held by Fine Products Limited by virtue of him being the
founder of The Sun Family Trust which holds the entire issued share capital
of Fine Products Limited. 75% of the issued share capital of Searich Group
Limited is held by Fine Products Limited. Details of the interest of Fine
Products Limited and Searich Group Limited in the Company can be found
in the section “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and

Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in 220,000 shares of the
Company through the interests of his spouse, Ms Tang Sau Ying Betty who

inherited the said shares from her mother's legacy in 2014.

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley is deemed to be interested in a total of
11,242,000 shares in the Company directly held by Dago Corporation,
which is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is owned
by Trident Trust Company (B.V.l.) Limited in its capacity as the trustee of
The Dennis Family Trust, a discretionary trust established for the benefit of
Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis and his family members including Mr Sun Tao Hung
Stanley. Dago Corporation also holds 25% of the issued share capital of

Searich Group Limited.

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley is deemed to be interested in 700,034,214
shares in the Company held by Fine Products Limited by virtue of him being
the beneficiary of The Sun Family Trust which hold the entire issued share
capital of Fine Products Limited. 75% of the issued share capital of Searich
Group Limited is held by Fine Products Limited. Details of the interest of
Fine Products Limited and Searich Group Limited in the Company can be
found in the section “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests

and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen is deemed to be interested in 70,000,000
shares of the Company held by HSBC Trustees (C.I.) Limited by virtue of
him being a beneficiary of a trust of which HSBC Trustees (C.I.) Limited

act as trustee. Details of the interest of HSBC Trustees (C.I.) Limited in the
Company can be found in the Section “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares”

below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the directors

of the Company and their associates had registered an interest or

short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of

part XV of SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section

352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any directors
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its holding
companies or subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2018, the following interests and short positions in the
shares and the underlying shares of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions of substantial shareholders who were entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of the voting power at
any general meeting of the Company:

Percentage of the

Capacity and Number of ordinary Company'’s issued
Name of shareholder nature of interest shares held Note share capital
{hARAF]
REREE S REREE BEEREREE FiEE ERTRAZESL
Dr Sun Tai Lun Dennis Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.08
BAtmEL BEREBA
Beneficiary of a trust 11,242,000 0.95
EEEE A
Founder of a trust 700,034,214 59.06
SRRl A
Interest of spouse 220,000 0.02
BB R
712,496,214 60.11
Fine Products Limited Beneficial owner & interest 700,034,214 (i) & (ii) 59.06
of a controlled corporation
ERBAARZEEERSR
Searich Group Limited Beneficial owner 600,034,214 (i) & (ii) 50.62
BEREBA
Trident Trust Company Trustee 711,276,214 (i) & (ii) 60.01
(B.V.1.) Limited fFFEA
Ms Tang Sau Ying Betty Beneficial owner 220,000 0.02
BERLL EREAEA
Interest of spouse 712,276,214 (i) & (iii) 60.09
BB
712,496,214 60.11
Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley Beneficiary of a trust 711,276,214 (iv) 60.01
BEsh ks BFRZEA
Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen Beneficiary of a trust 70,000,000 (v), (vii) 5.91
BREE EREZEA & (viii)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Long positions of other substantial shareholders:

Percentage of the

Capacity and Number of ordinary Company’s issued
Name of shareholder nature of interest shares held Note share capital
NG
REREE B RERME BEEREREEAE Bt 5 BRTRAZESL
Mr Fung Kwok Lun William Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 (vi) & (viii) 5.91
IBEmEE FErERER
Fung Retailing Limited Beneficial owner 70,000,000 - 5.91
BREEEEERAR ERBEEA
Fung Holdings (1937) Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 - 5.91
IBERIER (1937)BRAA FEEEER
King Lun Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 - 5.91
BimZERBR AT FEEEER
HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited Trustee 70,000,000 (vii) & (viii) 5.91
SFEA

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

100,000,000 R R (G AR LD BB BHITRHG 2
8.44%) HFine Products Limited EEHEA ° BT
2600,034,2148% B% £3 i Searich Group Limited#
& - MiFine Products Limited AlEAZ A 7B &
1TBRZX75% ° Fine Products Limited % — [ A &
BELZHEBTMAL AT » i HTrident Trust
Company (B.V.l.) LimitedAThe Sun Family Trust
FREABOTES -

ZERDCBEERAREL 2R A -

MERLZLTRRAEBEBRAMBLI ZEET
HE712,276, 214 A AT RHG 2w ©

%iBoL R ERIEH 5 AThe Sun Family Trust&
The Dennis Family TrustZ 2@ AR BEFEH
711,276,214 B AT R 2 xS -

Note:

(M

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

100,000,000 shares representing 8.44% of the Company’s shares in
issue are directly owned by Fine Products Limited. The remaining
600,034,214 shares are owned by Searich Group Limited, in which
Fine Products Limited holds 75% of its issued share capital. Fine
Products Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and is owned by Trident Trust Company (B.V.l.) Limited in its

capacity as the trustee of The Sun Family Trust.

Such interests have been included as the interests of Dr Sun Tai Lun

Dennis.

Ms Tang Sau Ying Betty is deemed to be interested in 712,276,214
shares of the Company through the interests of her spouse, Dr Sun Tai

Lun Dennis.

Mr Sun Tao Hung Stanley is deemed to be interested in a total
of 711,276,214 shares of the Company by virtue of him being a

beneficiary of The Sun Family Trust and The Dennis Family Trust.
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(v) Mr Fung Yue Chun Stephen is deemed to be interested in a total of
70,000,000 shares of the Company by virtue of him being a beneficiary

of a trust of which HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited act as trustee.

(vi) The interests of Mr Fung Kwok Lun William are held via a chain of
controlled corporations, namely Fung Retailing Limited, Fung Holdings
(1937) Limited and King Lun Holdings Limited (which is 50% owned
by Mr Fung Kwok Lun William).

(vii) The interests of HSBC Trustee (C.l.) Limited are held via a chain of
controlled corporations, namely Fung Retailing Limited, Fung Holdings
(1937) Limited and King Lun Holdings Limited (which is 50% owned
by HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited).

(viii) The interests of Mr Fung Kwok Lun William and HSBC Trustee (C.I.)
Limited as mentioned in the above notes (vi) and (vii) refer to the

same block of shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no person, other

than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in

the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 June 2018
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To the Shareholders of China-HongKong Photo Products
Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China-Hongkong Photo
Products Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 73 to 139, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2018;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888,
F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:
Provision for inventories
Valuation of investment properties

Provision for inventories
Refer to Note 3(m), 4(i) and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held inventories of
HK$192,301,000. A net provision for inventories of HK$6,684,000
was reversed for the year ended 31 March 2018. As described in
the accounting policy in Note 3(m) to the consolidated financial
statements, inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The Group’s inventories are subject to changing consumer
demands and market trends, increasing the level of judgement
involved in estimating provision for inventories.

We focused on this area as judgement is required to assess

the appropriate level of provisioning for items which may be
ultimately written off or sold below cost as a result of a reduction
in consumer demand particularly in light of the current volatile
retail market situation. Such judgement include management’s
estimation of the sales projection.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We performed the following procedures to evaluate the provision
for inventories.

- THRIEAREEBIFEEMN —FMNBERYE - Understood and tested the key controls over the sales
FEHETERIRN T EZFEE

projection of inventories which was based on a consistent
process as in previous years;

- KSEPAHECHRELESEEMN® © - Evaluated the key assumptions of the sales projection by
S ETERMN EE/EE

reference to the historical sales records and discussion with
operational management;

HBEHELHE  MERENATNFENEE
EBEFEREBENESEN |

KEEFRNFEMESHEERENBIER
(-

BEEERNW T RERAFHETENESR X

- WRERRBERNERRKMELERBEHESGAL - Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s inventory

provisioning policy with respect to the inventories by
category based on ageing together with the historical sales
records which reflected the expected life cycle of similar
products;

Reviewed historical accuracy of inventory provisioning with
reference to inventory write-offs during the year;

Discussed with management to understand indicators of

MRS RBEREE

slow moving inventories identified and obtained evidence for
these explanations;

- ERTRHERE  BERAAEFESEMNTEIE - compared the net realisable value of the inventories held
FEEGAAEEETHERLE ) R

at year end, on a sample basis, to latest selling prices by
examining the sales invoices; and

- RESEBEMBEERE  EFFTEERMEFEE - Recalculated the inventory provision as at year end based on
BE - the Group’s provisioning policy.

RBFHTHLRER  RMAAEEEALEEESE  Based on the above procedures performed, we found the key
ERBFEANEIERRGIARBERIEMIIES

assumptions of management in determining the provision for
inventories to be supportable by available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Note 3(h), 4(iii) and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties to be HK$227,235,000 at 31 March

2018, with a revaluation gain for the year ended 31 March 2018
recorded in the consolidated income statement of HK$37,403,000
million. Valuations by an independent external valuer were
obtained in order to support management’s estimates. The
valuations are dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant judgement, such as market prices and term yields.

We focused on this area due to the significant amount of
revaluation gain recorded for the year and the significant
management judgment used to evaluate the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Our procedures in relation to management’s valuations of
investment properties included:

—  Evaluating of the independent external valuer’s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

— Using our in-house valuation experts to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodologies used by
the valuer and the reasonableness of the key assumptions
adopted for the valuations based on our knowledge of the
property industry; and

— Checking on a sample basis the market prices and term yields
applied by making reference to available comparable market
data.

We found the key assumptions applied in the valuations of
investment properties as at year end to be supported by available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSA will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current

year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chow Shiu Hay, Antonio.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 June 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

BZE2018F3A31HLEFE For the year ended 31 March 2018
2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
By =F BT T BT T
= Revenue 6 929,839 852,510
SHEMA Cost of sales 7 (707,370) (652,582)
by Gross profit 222,469 199,928
HAKA R i Other income and gains 6 15,887 15,479
REMEATELE Changes in fair value of investment properties 14 37,403 3,855
HERDHEM Selling and distribution costs 7 (143,797) (143,049)
BERTSERERY Advertising and marketing expenses (17,310) (22,681)
THRX Administrative expenses (70,106) (72,627)
BERMN(BEE) Operating profit/(loss) 44,546 (19,095)
FEfE— R E N B EE Share of results of an associate - -
[ B 2 B i e A (548 Profit/(loss) before income tax 44,546 (19,095)
FriS®i (Bx) /K% Income tax (expense)/credit 10 (5,399) 448
REEHERN, (BHE) Profit/(loss) for the year 39,147 (18,647)
B (BR)RER Profit/(loss) attributable to:
KAREBA Owners of the Company 38,206 (19,436)
FERER Non-controlling interests 941 789
39,147 (18,647)
REERDREEAERL Profit/(loss) per share attributable to
BRER(EE) owners of the Company for the year 11
=R Basic HK$3.22 centsi{li  (HK$1.64 centsitifil)
e Diluted HK$3.22 centsiEfll  (HK$1.64 centsiE{l)

EBOEZE I30ENMEBZEFRS M BRRMAR

i

REFHEENMEEIZ

consolidated financial statements.

Details of the dividends are set out in Note 12.

The notes on pages 80 to 139 are an integral part of these
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BZ2018F3A31HLEE For the year ended 31 March 2018
2018 2017
HK$ 000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
REERN(EFE) Profit/(loss) for the year 39,147 (18,647)
Hib2EWA(FE): Other comprehensive income/(loss):
HE#H S EE B2 HEE Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss
BREBNMEBELEZR Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations 5,203 (1,973)
AEEHMBEWA,(E5IE) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 5,203 (1,973)
AEE2HEWA(EE)EE Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 44,350 (20,620)
FER Attributable to:
RAREEB A Owners of the Company 43,409 (21,409)
TR ER Non-controlling interests 941 789
44,350 (20,620)

$80EZE130EMNMEBZSARAMIEMERMAMK  The notes on pages 80 to 139 are an integral part of these

Ei

o

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B EE BT T BT T
BE ASSETS
FERENEE Non-current assets
M -~ BRENRE Property, plant and equipment 13 81,712 68,325
BEYE Investment properties 14 227,235 194,240
b Deposits 19 12,753 13,511
RERIBEE Deferred tax assets 23 114 234
FRBEEHT Total non-current assets 321,814 276,310
REBEE Current assets
78 Inventories 17 192,301 154,343
825 FEIBZEEIE Trade receivables 18 47,669 40,770
J‘Eqﬁl [ B =i Amount due from an associate 16 29,105 21,825
FE{FFIE - Eé&ﬁ{m Prepayments, deposits and
FEUR BR1E other receivables 19 31,972 39,740
EEEE Tax recoverable 10 618
RERBITHER Cash and bank balances 20 219,486 241,180
REBEEALE Total current assets 520,543 498,476
EEHBE Total assets 842,357 774,786
s EQUITY
EATEE AEMLER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
&N Share capital 24 118,532 118,532
15 Reserves 25 571,777 528,368
690,309 646,900
IR AER Non-controlling interests 1,136 1,853
ERBE Total equity 691,445 648,753

FOEZ130ENMEBZERESMBIRKRMAM  The notes on pages 80 to 139 are an integral part of these

W

consolidated financial statements.
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&) Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

=

As at 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
FIEE BET T BT T
=0 LIABILITIES
kREBEE Non-current liabilities
Eiras Accrued liabilities 22 1,021 2,837
EEFRIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 23 28,135 23,571
FRBEERE Total non-current liabilities 29,156 26,408
REBEE Current liabilities
ESEMNERERERE Trade and bills payable 21 60,133 41,739
FEstEE R HEIRE Accrued liabilities and other payables 22 50,758 49,624
FEfTRiE Tax payable 10,865 8,262
REAEEE Total current liabilities 121,756 99,625
EEAE Total liabilities 150,912 126,033
EzRkaEREE Total equity and liabilities 842,357 774,786
REEERE Net current assets 398,787 398,851
EERRBEEHARH Total assets less current liabilities 720,601 675,161

THRE73EZ 1390ANMBEHRERCN20185F6 A
2QIRESESEHE  UREHTIESRARKRE

Z:

BKfm
*E
Sun Tai Lun Dennis

Chairman

ES0EE139E KRS

A

Z

EEEUBRROAR

behalf.

EE3EEIN

B E/ERAITHARH

Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Deputy Chairman and CEO

consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 73 to 139 were approved by
the Board of directors on 21 June 2018 and were signed on its

The notes on pages 80 to 139 are an integral part of these
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BZ2018F3A31HILEE

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2018

KOAERARLE
Attributable to owners of the Company
Share Capital  Exchange Asset Non-
Share  premium redemption  fluctuation revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account’  reserve'  reserve'  reserve!  eamings' Total interests equity
Rt AREE ERR® 4EER
Ra EE it ! fif  REER) &t FERER  BROE
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
AhTn  ER¥Tn  ARTn  BRTn BETR BT BRTn  EBfn ERTx
R2016F45 1 B & Balance at 1 April 2016 118532 490378 1,619 1862 25387 30531 668,309 1064 669373
FEERE Loss for the year - - - - - (19436 (19436) 89 (18647)
Ab2EEE: Other comprehensive loss:
RERNEBERZE Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - (1,973) - - (1,973) - (1,973)
2A(FE)/ WAEE Total comprehensive (loss)/income - - - (19n) - (19436 (21409 789 (20620)
R2017E3831BR20178  Balance at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017
4R1RES 118532 490,378 1,619 (111) 25,387 11,005 646,900 1853 648753
REERA Profit for the year - - - - - 3826 38206 o4 39,147
Bt 2EKRA : Other comprehensive income:
RERNSHERER Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - 5,203 - - 5,203 - 5,203
REYALE Total comprehensive income - - - 5,203 - 38206 43409 941 44350
EANRREAETNRS Total transactions with owners of the
ER(ERNERR): Company, recognized directly in
equity:
RE Dividends - - - - - - - (1,658) (1,658)
R2018F3A31 AR Balance at 31 March 2018 118532 490,378 1,619 5,002 25,387 49301 690,309 1,136 691,445

' HERBREERGEMBRRR 2GS HEEY

571,777,0007t (20174 : #¥528,368,0007T) ©

EBOHEI30ENMEBZEFE UHMRHOANK

G

o

1

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$571,777,000 (2017: HK$528,368,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

The notes on pages 80 to 139 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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mEHESREER

HZE2018F3A31HILLFEE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FEE BT T BT T
REEKIRERH Cash flows from operating activities
BETEHR A OaF)), K18 Profit/(loss) before income tax 44,546 (19,095)
BTHAE Adjustments for:
SN Interest income 6 (2,663) (2,635)
ME  BEREZBZINE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 7 19,167 20,494
HEWE - BRERREREZ (Gains)/losses on disposals of property,
(W), B8 plant and equipment 7 (7) 457
(BBE®E) TFE5RE (Reversal of provision)/provision for
inventories 7 (6,684) 3,575
REWMELNTFEED Changes in fair value of investment
properties 14 (37,403) (3,855)
16,956 (1,059)
EEESRE Changes in working capital
FEZ(Em,m> (Increase)/decrease in inventories (31,274) 84
FEWARIE = (#Eh0) R (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (6,830) 22,304
e FENREREMEWIE Decrease/(increase) in deposits,
B ZEL(3Ehm) prepayments and other receivables 8,646 (4,959)
ZZRNIRERZIE ZIEM,” Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills
Om2) payable 18,394 (4,035)
e EREMEMIRE Decrease in accrued liabilities and other
2D payables (1,962) (5,275)
KEEEEBRSE Cash generated from operations 3,930 7,060
EBREBER Hong Kong profits tax refunded 2,759 625
2B BFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (386) (1,336)
BN IR T Overseas taxes refunded - 2
EAEINIE Overseas taxes paid (324) (407)
REEBABREFHE Net cash generated from operating
activities 5,979 5,944



SAWBEAREIFR(E) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

HZE2018F3831HIEEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
Note HK$ 000 HK$°000
FEE BT T BT T
REZBZRERD Cash flows from investing activities
BWFE Interest received 2,663 2,635
BAYE -  BERRE Purchases of property, plant and
equipment 13 (26,092) (15,713)
HEME - RERRMEMS  Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
IE and equipment 82 166
FREHABB=1EH 2K Decrease in non-pledged time deposits
EHFRRD with original maturity of more than three
months 20 30,969 60,140
B — EEE A T HNBR Advances to an associate (7,280) (11,656)
REZEME2RESFE Net cash generated from investing
activities 342 35,572
METH2RERE Cash flows from a financing activity
ENREFIHZEREZKEME Dividend paid to non-controlling interests
EEFTR RS T and net cash used in a financing activity (820) =
ReRRESEEEAZ Net increase in cash and cash
12 nFE equivalents 5,501 41,516
FYRERALEEER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 182,800 142,181
HeRBESEEEECER Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and
Wi (E18) cash equivalents 3,774 (897)
FRESRBELSEHEER Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 20 192,075 182,800

E80BEZE1390EMMTEZ

2E A B |MERNAR

consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 80 to 139 are an integral part of these
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2.1

—KREH
hERESMERERARNTARA DA —BH
RERETME L 2BRAAE « XD A EM
PWERE I Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda ° KA B Z E B &
Xt BB BLEE L HBE220-2487F 4
FEheig o

ARAREWE LR (SHE AEE D ETERS
WVEBREHRS  PORORBER - URH
ERAER EBEER  HEEFERKRA
B ROREREPENERZMRYE - HHE
MEEBRTR - RETRTERE -

BEERA  ADQTWEEEZER DT BSearich
Group Limited % £ #& #%i% A B BFine Products
Limited ° MEER QAR EBE LB S M

FR3L e

wRREE
FEEUBBRDEEBETMAS(EES
SHEAE ) EMNEBMBREER(EEY
B|EER NREBD GG (F6228)KE
REMER - REMBRREFAB LB ER
B BEBRLAVEINRNREMESEAE
7 o BREERAEH - NREMBHRTIEE
(TBREDER  MARENBRIAZRELZ
FiL o

RETBUBERELARRESUBRREAR
RAETEIEGHGEE  EEETRARESH
R AEHAE - FREXAREHEHHIR
ERABRREAHGEEUBERRAEEALE
ZEE - RIfEARE -

2.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at 8/F,
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248 Texaco Road, Tsuen
Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is
principally involved in (i) the marketing and distribution of
photographic developing, processing and printing products
and sale of photographic merchandises, skincare products,
consumer electronic products and household appliances;
and (ii) the provision of technical services for photographic
developing and processing products, professional audio-
visual advisory and custom design and installation services.

In the opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Searich Group Limited and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Fine Products
Limited. Both of the holding companies are incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, which are carried at fair value. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree

of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions

and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The accounting policies and methods of computation used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and amended
HKASs and HKFRS for the first time for the current year’s
consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 7 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of deferred tax assets of

Disclosure initiative

unrealised losses
Annual Improvements Annual improvements 2014-2016
Project (Amendments) cycle

— HKFRS 12

The adoption of the above new and amended HKASs and
HKFRS does not have significant impact on the Group’s
results and financial positions nor any substantial change in
the Group’s accounting policies, and presentations of the
consolidated financial statements.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning 1 April 2017. They are relevant to the Group
but have not been early adopted.
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OB TR ERMIEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 EEMGERKRERNEEMBEHREENZ 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

RUT Effective for
Az accounting
Mz gt periods beginning
BEER M on or after  Note
EEMERE  SRIA 2018F4A18 () HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 April 2018 (i)
ERIZE05:
BEUBREER AEEHEL 20194818 () HKFRS 9 Prepayment features with 1 April 2019 (i)
ELCHACH) TS (Amendments) negative compensation
BEUBRE  BPAAWE  2018F4A18 (i) HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with 1 April 2018 (i)
RIS 158, customers
ERERME  IMERSR 201854818 HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign currency transactions 1 April 2018
REREZE BAKE and advance consideration
B)En%
EBETHER REEATRE 2018F4A10 HKAS 28 Investments in associates 1 April 2018
2828%% (1&5]) ERENRE (Amendment) and joint ventures
EREHER  REWMEEZE  2018F4A1A HKAS 40 Transfers of investment 1 April 2018
405 (187T) (Amendments)  property
ERMBREERN BEARAEBE 2018F4A1R HKERS 1 First time adoption of HKFRS 1 April 2018
ESEACH)! BHREER (Amendment)
ERMBHRSE  HE 2019F4818 (v HKFRS 16 Leases 1 April 2019 (iv)
ERIE 1657
EE(ERAHBR FSHERY  2019F4A1R HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over income tax 1 April 2019
HREZEE) THEH treatments
5235
EREMEN SR 2019F4A18 HKAS 12 Income taxes 1 April 2019
F1255(185T) (Amendments)
BERUBRE  EHEH 2019F4A1H HKERS 3 Business combination 1 April 2019
B35 (Amendments)
BEUBREEL REZEAKE B#E HKFRS 10 and Sale or contribution of assets  To be determined
FI0EREE  AANEE HKAS 28 between an investor
STHER| ¥ BNE (Amendments) and its associate or joint

5288 (183T) EHERTE venture
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 BEGESKRERHEFEMFRELED(E) 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

BEE(i):

EAPBERERAFIORISMIA IZEADRELES
sHEERISE30% - BBMBMELRFORBER TR
REDH=EHBEERS  BHAL - RATFEE
BEMEARBIR(EAFEZBABEE KRS
iR URBATVEZBRBIR -2 EETERMA
DEEEETANEBEARAEGNRS RN
)

BETARE-RUATHESE - R - BEEET
LUYE R s e - A2 DI E AR & (M Hift
FEREDNEBRATELE  HESTATESR
FEERARMES - HESTIADRFESARME
B AEAFENEBNESZY] - SREETEM
B5EER  BERARRDFEABRE © it IELT
LERMAEEEAROTENAES  HEELSN
FERBZDMEENAFEZBNEBESRET
BRER - RFRSOTELBEERERENEHE
B - ERERT - BIAFEAFESBREEAESR
MrEANEHESEREMGRA NS RAEERE
i ERBHEESSREGE(EETEEREARH) i
BEATESBRNEERES] -

HR2018F3A310 » AEEMECHEERERARE
BRBERATIER > DA IREBMBEREERSE
OSRIE TR EERENE -

ERUBRELENEORRHEAREBESIAHIE
X-EHFESR(HERFESEDER  HEBRE
BETEREIONTNEEEFREANED - 58
BB ERAFERRE B =R IS E - G E
LA BREZEREEFEEZNEDAER - BE
BEEEZSHN=ERRAEE  TRKRAESR
BURESENTESEARERFZENERLTR -
HRABKRE - NRRIARBRECERENEREE
i BANERANEREESRFEAEREE -
RBEHARBRENER - MBE S EWRE » Blit
HEEASESREZRBEGHNEREERSE - i
FERBEZEN  AERRELSHNRANEEE
B(Mk12EAANEBEEFER)FERE -

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Note (i):

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” replaces the whole of HKAS

39. HKFRS 9 has three financial asset classification categories for
investments in debt instruments: amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and fair value through
profit or loss. Classification is driven by the entity’s business model
for managing the debt instruments and their contractual cash flow
characteristics.

Investments in equity instruments are always measured at fair

value. However, management can make an irrevocable election to
present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income (“OCI”)
not recycling, provided the instrument is not held for trading. If

the equity instrument is held for trading, changes in fair value are
presented in profit or loss. For financial liabilities there are two
classification categories: amortised cost and fair value through profit
or loss. Where non-derivative financial liabilities are designated at
fair value through profit or loss, the changes in the fair value due to
changes in the liability’s own credit risk are recognised in OCI, unless
such changes in fair value would create an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss, in which case, all fair value movements are recognised
in profit or loss. There is no subsequent recycling of the amounts in
OCI to profit or loss. For financial liabilities held for trading (including
derivative financial liabilities), all changes in fair value are presented
in profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2018, all of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities were carried at amortised cost, which would likely continue

to be measured on the same basis under HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 9 also introduces a new model for the recognition of
impairment losses — the expected credit losses (“ECL”) model,
which constitutes a change from the incurred loss model in HKAS 39.
HKFRS 9 contains a “three stage” approach, which is based on the
change in credit quality of financial assets since initial recognition.
Assets move through the three stages as credit quality changes and
the stages dictate how an entity measures impairment losses and
applies the effective interest rate method. The new rules mean that
on initial recognition of a non-credit impaired financial asset carried at
amortised cost a day-1 loss equal to the 12-month ECL is recognised
in profit or loss. In the case of accounts receivables this day-1 loss
will be equal to their lifetime ECL. Where there is a significant
increase in credit risk, impairment is measured using lifetime ECL
rather than 12-month ECL.
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RIEFBEHERE3S  BERTMERTKEER
HRARSEIER  AEREREEITREREBZEH
ZRATREEREEORGPRABE - FERAEN
SAHEERAEX  AEEEEERS ARAEEBE
ABERHEFAEREAE  WEEEEHBUBBRSEE
BIZEOSES - LB BB TEHAEEELEMHE -

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Note (i): (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment
provisions based on ECL rather than only incurred credit losses as

is the case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified

at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVOCI, contract assets under
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, lease receivables,

loan commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts.

Management of the Group has performed an assessment on how
its impairment provisions would be affected by the new model.
Based on the historical experience of the Group, the default rate
of the outstanding balances with customers is low. The historical
credit losses are immaterial. Management of the Group expected
the adoption of the new ECL model under HKFRS 9 will not have
significant impact on its financial performance and position. The
provision on trade receivables will remain stable under the ECL

model.

HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing
the bright line hedge effectiveness test. It requires an economic
relationship between the hedged item and hedging instrument and
for the “hedged ratio” to be the same as the one management usually
use for risk management purposes. Contemporaneous documentation
is still required but is different to that currently prepared under HKAS

39. The Group does not have any hedging instruments.

HKFRS 9 requires an entity to recalculate the amortised cost of the
modified financial liability by discounting the modified contractual
cash flows using the original effective interest rate. Any adjustments
to the amortised cost of the financial liability would be recognised in
profit or loss at the date of the modification or exchange. This may
constitute a change if entities apply a different accounting treatment
for modifications of financial liabilities under HKAS 39. Under HKAS
39, entities can recognise a gain or loss at the date of modification
of a financial liability, or the difference between the original and
modified cash flows can be amortised over the remaining term of
the modified liability by re-calculating the effective interest rate.
Management of the Group considered that this change will not have
any impact on the Group upon transition to HKFRS 9 as the Group

has not previously modified any of its financial liabilities.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Note (i): (Continued)

The derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39 and not

been changed.

The new standard will be applied by the Group in the financial
year starting from 1 April 2018. The cumulative impact of the
adoption will be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 April 2018
and comparatives will not be restated. Based on Management’s
assessment of HKFRS 9 impact, there is no material impact to the

retained earnings as of 1 April 2018.
Note (ii):

HKFRS 9 (Amendments) “Prepayment features with negative
compensation” clarifies that prepayable financial assets with negative
compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income if specified conditions are met
instead of at fair value through profit or loss. Management of the
Group considered that this change will not have any impact on the
Group upon transition to HKFRS 9 as the Group does not have any

prepayable financial assets.
Note (iii):

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” — This new
standard replaces the previous revenue standards: HKAS 18 “Revenue”
and HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”, and the related Interpretations
on revenue recognition. HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining when to recognise revenue and how much

revenue to recognise through a 5-step approach:

(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer; (2) Identify separate
performance obligations in a contract; (3) Determine the transaction
price; (4) Allocate transaction price to performance obligations; and
(5) Recognise revenue when performance obligation is satisfied. The
core principle is that a company should recognise revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. It moves away
from a revenue recognition model based on an “earnings processes”
to an “asset liability” approach based on transfer of control. HKFRS
15 provides specific guidance on capitalisation of contract cost,
license arrangements and principal versus agent considerations. It
also includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from the entity’s contracts with customers. The major revenue
stream for the Group are sales of goods and provision of services,
the performance obligations of this revenue is currently recognised in

accordance with Note 3(r).
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Note (iii): (Continued)

The Group has performed an assessment of the potential impact

of the application of HKFRS 15 and identified the key areas which
might be accounted for differently under this new standard, including
but not limited to the timing of revenue recognition. Based on the
assessment, the Group does not anticipate that the application of
this standard will have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

The new standard will be applied by the Group in the financial year
starting from 1 April 2018, with modified retrospective approach
which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption will

be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 April 2018 and that

comparatives will not be restated.
Note (iv):

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — The Group is a lessee of its stores which

are currently classified as operating leases. The Group’s current
accounting policy for such leases is set out in Note 3(u). As at 31
March 2018, the Group has aggregate minimum lease payments,
which are not reflected in the combined statements of financial
position, under non-cancellable operating lease of HK$85.2 million as
set out in Note 26.

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting treatment of
leases and will in the future no longer allow lessees to account for
certain leases outside the combined statements of financial position.
Instead, all long-term leases must be recognised in the combined
statements of financial position in the form of assets (for the rights of
use) and lease liabilities (for the payment obligations), both of which
would carry initially at the discounted present value of the future
operating lease commitments. Short-term leases with a lease term
of twelve months or less and leases of low-value assets are exempt

from such reporting obligations.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Note (iv): (Continued)

The new standard will therefore result in an increase in right-to-use
asset and an increase in lease liability in the consolidated statements
of financial position. In the consolidated income statement, lease will
be recognised in the future as depreciation and will no longer be
recorded as rental expenses. Interest expense on the lease liability
will be presented separately from depreciation under finance costs. As
a result, the rental expenses under otherwise identical circumstances
will decrease, while depreciation and the interest expense will
increase. The combination of a straight-line depreciation of the right-
to-use asset and the effective interest rate method applied to the
lease liability will result in a higher total charge to profit or loss in the
initial year of the lease, and decreasing expenses during the latter
part of the lease term.

The accounting by lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$85.2 million, see
Note 26. However, the Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example because of the change
in the definition of the lease term and the different treatment of
variable lease payments and of extension and termination options. It
is therefore not yet possible to estimate the amount of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities that will have to be recognized on adoption
of the new standard and how this may affect the Group’s profit or

loss and classification of cash flows going forward.

The new standard is not expected to be applied by the Group until
the financial year ending 31 March 2020. The Group intends to apply
the simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative

amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

Other than those analysed above, management does not anticipate
any significant impact on the Group’s financial positions and results
of operations upon adopting the above other amendments to existing

standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(@) Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 3(b)).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of financial position respectively.

(ii) Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (see (iii) below),
after initially being recognised at cost.
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Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share

of movements in other comprehensive income

of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates and
joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in accordance
with the policy described in Note 3(f).
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The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received

is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with

the change in carrying amount recognised in

profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised

in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the

(i)
acquired business

(iii)

equity interests issued by the Group
(iv) fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

(v)

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

(i) consideration transferred,
(i) amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

(iii) acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity
or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries

is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of

the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors that makes
strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains or
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year-end exchange
rates are generally recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

All foreign exchange gains or losses are presented in the
income statement on a net basis within “administrative
expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at
fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different

from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement and
statement of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

(8)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed

for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 5% or over the remaining
lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33 1/3%
leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

The asset’s useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(8)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note

3(h).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “selling and distribution costs” and
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement within “changes in fair
value of investment properties”.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the year of the retirement or
disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as
an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” (Note 3(g)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0]

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. See Note 29 for details about the
financial assets.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or expected to
be settled more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, cash and
bank balances and amount due from an associate in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Recognition, measurement and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

G

(k)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
where the Company has a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence

of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in
Note 18.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(U]

(m

(n)

f=

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. See Note 3(i) for further information about
the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and Note
3(k) for a description of the Group’s impairment policy.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Trade, bills and other payables

Trade and bills payable are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade, bills and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring
provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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3 EEEMNBREEGA 3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(q) Current and deferred income tax
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The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period in the countries where
the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised

if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely through
sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(q) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(r)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate
to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Investment allowances and similar tax incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group
accounts for such allowances as tax credits, which means
that the allowance reduces income tax payable and
current tax expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised
for unclaimed tax credits that are carried forward as
deferred tax assets.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;

and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

(i) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(ii) from the provision of film processing, photofinishing
services, professional audio-visual advisory and
custom design and installation services, and
technical services for photographic developing and
processing products, when the services have been
rendered;

(iii) interest income, recognise using the effective
interest method; and

(iv) rental income, on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Other employee benefits

Prepaid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period

is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the end of the reporting period for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by
the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme under

the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance

and a defined contribution occupational retirement
scheme (the “ORSO scheme”) under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of

the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the schemes. The assets
of both schemes are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds. The Group’s
employer contributions to both schemes vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the schemes,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions
to the ORSO scheme, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules
of the ORSO scheme.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained earnings within

the equity section of the consolidated statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by
the Shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the Shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks where
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership

of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets (Note 14), and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
the operating leases (Note 26), net of any incentives
received from the lessor, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial

statements requires management to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the

disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting

period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and

estimates could result in outcomes that could require a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

(i)

Provision for inventories

The Group assesses periodically if the inventories have
been suffered from any impairment. The Group carries
out an inventory review at the end of the reporting
period and makes allowance for obsolete and slow
moving items. The management estimates the net
realisable value for the inventories primarily on the
estimated future selling price and market conditions.
Where the estimates of the net realisable value are less
than expected, a material allowance may arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the product
or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on
the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life

of the asset is based on the experience of the Group
with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Additional depreciation or amortisation is made if the
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are different from previous estimation. Useful lives are
reviewed at each reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from
a variety of sources, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of
a different nature, condition, location, adjusted to
reflect those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts and
(when possible) by external evidence such as current
market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows. The
principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of
the fair value include those related to current market
rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition, appropriate discount rates, expected
future market rents and future maintenance costs.
The carrying amount of investment properties
at 31 March 2018 was HK$227,235,000 (2017:
HK$194,240,000).
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets (other than

(v)

goodwill and trademarks)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators

of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based

on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences arising from
impairment on inventories and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses and deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are contained in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
four reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) the merchandise segment engages in the marketing
and distribution of photographic developing, processing
and printing products and the sale of photographic
merchandises, skincare products, consumer electronic
products and household appliances;

(if) the service segment engages in the provision of technical
services for photographic developing and processing
products, professional audio-visual advisory and custom
design and installation services;

(iii) the investment segment comprises the Group’s
businesses in investment properties; and

(iv) the corporate and others segment comprises the
Group’s corporate income and expense items and other
investment businesses.

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been
identified as the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors
monitors the results of its operating segments separately for
the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which
is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before income tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax except

that interest income and share of results of an associate are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
cash and bank balances and other unallocated corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted at cost plus a
mark-up of approximately 6.72% to 35.24% (2017: 6.29% to
29.91%).
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5 BESTFRH@E 5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a BEHE (a) Operating segments
Merchandise Service Investment  Corporate and Others  Eliminations Consolidated
ER#E i k& bEREM it &8

008 2017 2018 2017 2008 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETn ERTR BRTn EWTR BRTn RRTR ERTn RWTR BRTn RRTR ERTn RERTR

AENE Segment revenue:
DREFZHE  Sales to external customers 778,585 703490 151,254 149,020 - = - = - - 929839 852510
PEBZEE  Intersegment sales 30855 31043 2613 2984 - - - - (33468) (34,027) - =
EfMARKE  Other income and gains 8930 5385 - - 52495 15312 9 {10 (10897) (4,118) 50,627 16,699
@t Total 818370 739918 153,867 152,004 52495 15322 99 {10 (44,365 (38,145 980,466 869,209
BRI/ (BB)  Segment profit/(loss) 812 (24762) 3,062 4108 43,161 8363 (5168 (9439 - - M8 (21,730
FEBA Interest income 2,663 2,635
Ef-BHENR
E Share of results of an associate - -
WRATEH AR/
(E5i8) Profit/(loss) before income tax 44546 (19,095)
FiEsi(Bx)/
g Income tax (expense)/credit (5399) 448
REERR/
(Bstg) Profit/(loss) for the year 39,147  (18,647)
Merchandise Service Investment  Corporate and Others  Consolidated
EmHE it - PEREM &a
2018 2007 2018 2017 2018 2017 2008 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETr AMTr AMTn BETR BETR BRTn B8Tn AETr A%Tn A¥Tr
EEREE Assets and liabilities
HREE Segment assets 267366 231,104 46544 38686 252,965 211,132 55812 51832 62741 532,754
ROWEE Unallocated assets 219,610 242,032
BEE Total assets 842,357 774,786
PRERE Segment liablities 83759 62690 9971 9618 10707 16863 6,631 5029 111,074 94,200
AIEEE Unallocated liabilities 39,838 31,833
Bek Total liabilities 150912 126,033
AAEER Other segment information:
wE (W) Depreciation (Note 7) 740 9031 1,732 7002 - - 3995 4461 19,167 20494
EREL(HE13) Capital expenditure’ (Note 13) 0,81 12506 2812 2817 - - 983 370 26092 15713
RENELNTEZD(WEE14)  Changes in fair value of investment
properties (Note 14) - - - - (37,403) (3,855) - - (37,403) (3,855)
(BEER)/FEREWET)  (Reversal of provision)/provision for
inventories (Note 7) (6,684) 3575 - - - - - - (6,688) 3575
1 BERBELOERBEYE  BERSME - ! Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) WMEZFH (b) Geographical information
BRXGFFEME s 2AREBKRFIZ S TN An analysis of the Group’s revenue by location in which
TS & the transaction took place is as follows:
2018 2017
HK$ 000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
REIIREFE 2 Wz Revenue from external customers
a8 Hong Kong 929,627 852,118
hEARLME(HE]D People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) 212 392
929,839 852,510

REEMEHBAD 2 AKEERBEE
(ELEMEREERZSBRIMNIMAT :

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than
deferred income tax assets and deposits) by location of
assets is as follows:

2018 2017
HK$ 000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

ERBEE Non-current assets
a8 Hong Kong 177,070 148,250
AR PRC 131,877 114,315
308,947 262,565

() FR—RBEEERZHEH
W %5 P 478 #549,667,0007T (20175 - 38
#£37,458,000 L) NEMEED EHE T
B-EFEMEEZHESRE -

(c) Information about a major customer
Revenue of approximately HK$49,667,000 (2017:
HK$37,458,000) was derived from sales by the
merchandise segment to a single customer.
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6 e Rttt ARz 6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WHRTAEE 2 E¥ERE  BOHEEEM2H# Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
EFE(BHBRESE RIFNEE)  Ri)iRMEE (i) the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
ERPEERBEMRE «  EXFTREMATE - for returns and trade discounts; and (ii) income from the
R RZERBEZBA o rendering of technical services for photographic developing

and processing products, professional audio-visual advisory
and custom design and installation services.

Wi EBMARKEZ AT An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETRT
Wz Revenue
EmEE Sale of goods 778,585 703,490
RERFS < WA Income from the rendering of services 151,254 149,020
929,839 852,510
HAi g A R Wz Other income and gains
SRITIERZFE WA Interest income on bank deposits 2,663 2,635
WA BEE(KEE(14()) Gross rental income (Note 14(a)) 7,680 7,351
Hity Others 5,544 5,493
15,887 15,479
7 HHEESERAX 7 EXPENSES BY NATURE
2018 2017
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
3 BT BT
HEFERA Cost of inventories sold 634,754 579,217
IRERFE A Cost of services provided 45,037 41,274
A Gl Auditor’s remuneration
ERTE Audit services 1,585 1,485
FEZIRTE Non-audit services 662 649
WE  BMEKRMBZITE  Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 13 19,167 20,494
BERTGHERERX Adbvertising and marketing expenses 15,474 20,622
RIELEHER L1 RIEF Minimum lease payments under operating
XN HREAERIE leases on land and buildings 60,493 62,319
HEVE  BERSZHEZ (Gains)/losses on disposals of property, plant
(W), E&ig and equipment (7) 457
(BfErEmE) FERE (Reversal of provision)/provision for
inventories (6,684) 3,575
EENEEER Legal and professional fee 1,361 1,617
EEEAEX Employee benefit expense 8 109,170 104,404
EXERE  F8 Foreign exchange differences, net (3,476) 1,683
Hits Others 61,047 53,143

HERAK - HERDIE  Total cost of sales, selling and distribution
A BEERTSBHEERE  costs, advertising and marketing expenses
RITHBA X &5 and administrative expenses 938,583 890,939
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EREFAZ(BREFEHS) 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
ITERFS Wages and salaries 106,474 101,695
BRURERA - REMMKETE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 2,696 2,709
109,170 104,404
BT - Note:

WHED R WHKRATBENRAEBRARREEESH

B e

FEECAETHEESSES AR ERATE - 2%
SEHEEETRAEE -  REBEEESARAZE
TEALAFHMAR - TRRERBUGEHREE L
BRMARERARENEERERKBFERE - B
BRI AEBERRRNENREE-—PHETE
£ -

FEETAEREBNEERLAEHUTE - 56
SRR RBRAEAREE T BRG(MREEERA D
MHLEZEAEE - XAEERAFBESYARR
EERGIFTET R RESHBRA RZ5%H LIREFEF
HHR - SHEANEEEAEENEES RS - 1B

SMER o

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution
payable by the Group in future years.

The Group has sponsored various defined contribution plans for its
employees in the PRC. These plans are organised by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments based on certain percentage
of the relevant employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future retired employees under
these plans and the Group has no further constructive obligation for

post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.

The Group has also sponsored a defined contribution scheme which
is managed by an approved trustee registered under Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. Both the Group and its employees in
Hong Kong are required to contribute a maximum of 5% of each
individual’s relevant income or a limited amount as prescribed by the
MPF Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held separately from

those of the Group and independently administered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2017: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in Note 32. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
one (2017: one) non-director, highest paid employee for the
year were as follows:

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

& ROERY Salaries and allowances 1,569 1,655
BARE A - REHRRETE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 18 18
1,587 1,673

WEWAETHEBE 2 FESRESHFHES
ABAT :

The non-director, highest paid employee’s remuneration fell
within the following band:

Number of employees

BEAE
2018 2017
7B#51,000,001 TTE B HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
2,000,0007¢ 1 1
REnEsE (Ef) 10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

EBFEHREFENEE BRI ZETERB
EA o EBLER16.5% (20175 : 16.5%) 5T 5
o AEEPEERF BNV BRAEBME
BEKRIIWBRITHETE o

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on profits
assessable for the year in the PRC has been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the location in which the Group

operates.

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

EHRE-BE Current tax — Hong Kong
FAFHR Charge for the year 610 463
AFEERE Over provision in prior years (344) (298)

EHBE - FE Current tax — PRC

FAFHR Charge for the year 843 960
AFEERE Over provision in prior years (96) (2)
1,013 1,123
IEFERE (FEE23) Deferred tax (Note 23) 4,386 (1,571)
Fri8®ifx, (&) Income tax expense/(credit) 5,399 (448)
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BEMGELE 2 BWBERZZHMT ¢

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits/(losses) of the

consolidated entities as follows:

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
BrEr BB AR, (E5ia) Profit/(loss) before income tax 44,546 (19,095)
REER MWEBANEAEWIHRE Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
FTE2BIE applicable to profits in respective
countries/regions 92,158 (3,4006)
RECBEERE Over-provision in prior years (440) (300)
REBFUA Income not subject to tax (10,141) (1,843)
FAMB Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 3,871 1,079
KRERELCHBEEZHIESE Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset
was recognised 4,192 4,683
KB ERER 2BIHESE Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses (1,241) (661)
HERY (ER) Tax expense/(credit) 5,399 (448)
SREHN (K@) 11 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
SREREZF(FE)RIEUTERSE The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on:
2018 2017
AAREE AEEER(F5E) Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the
(BET ) Company (HK$’000) 38,206 (19,436)

EEBITEER 2 MEFIIH

ordinary shares in issue

Weighted average number of

1,185,318,349 1,185,318,349

BREARF(FE) GBI

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK$ cents) 3.22

(1.64)

HARAEEREZE2018F %2017F3831 01k
FEVECBRTEETHEZER » MAERMRZ
EEERIERERER, (BE)ELEE

&IE
EEE R EEMEE2018F3A831 A LEEER
BIEMRE (20175 : BET) ©

12

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss)
per share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017 in respect of a dilution as the Group had
no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those
years.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment
of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
HK$Nil).
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold land leasehold Machinery and
and buildings improvements equipment Motor vehicles Total
G BB
HELHREF  REENERE BERRE hE 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBTR BT EBTR BT EBTR
R201754R18 At 1 April 2017
o Cost 82,584 92,432 78,061 6,480 159,557
ZHTERFE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (39,100) (83,981) (62,966) (5,185) (191,232
FEFE Net book amount 43,484 8,451 15,005 1,295 68,325
BEN018E3A3ALEE Year ended 31 March 2018
ENREFE Opening net book amount 43,484 8,451 15,005 1,295 68,325
#m Additions - 21,334 4,758 - 26,092
&2 (1) Transfer (Note 14) 5070 = = - 5,070
HE Disposals = (15) = = (75)
HER% (Hi7) Depreciation charge (Note 7) (4,344) (11,877) (2,565) (381) (19,167)
EnEE Exchange realignment 1,270 4 193 - 1,467
EXEEFE Closing net book amount 45,480 17,837 17,481 914 81,712
2018534318 At 31 March 2018
B Cost 89,469 98,972 65,719 6,545 260,705
ZHTERFE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (43,989) (81,135) (48,238) (5,631) (178,993)
FEFE Net book amount 45,480 17,831 17,481 914 81,712
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold land leasehold Machinery and
and buildings improvements equipment Motor vehicles Total
B EER
RELHEET RENEEE BERZE byl it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
eI BT BT BT eI
201654518 At 1 April 2016
A Cost 83,628 90413 73,332 6,198 254,171
ZHTERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (35,314) (76,229) (62,480) (5,431) (179,454)
FEFE Net book amount 48314 14,184 10852 1,367 74,717
BEWTE3A3MALEE Year ended 31 March 2017
EEEFE Opening net book amount 8314 14,184 10,852 1,367 717
£ Additions = 8,189 1215 199 15,713
HE Disposals = (62) (561) = (623)
WER% (Hit7) Depreciation charge (Note 7) (3,995) (13,856) (2.272) (371) (20,494)
EiHE Exchange realignment (835) (4) (149) = (988)
ERRETE Closing net book amount 43,484 8,451 15,005 1,205 68325
2017534318 At 31 March 2017
A Cost 82,584 92,431 78,061 6,480 159,557
ZiERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (39,100) (83,981) (62,966) (5,185) (191,232)
FEFE Net book amount 43,484 8,451 15,095 1,295 68,325

H2018F3A310 » UAFPEZHEL hRE
FHAREFESB%17,901,0007T (20174 :
7 #5 18,748,000t ) » BIREBEFHBELIT AR
EEHETHREFEDR  -HRBBEEN
THEETREATFEHR T REFZEELED
B BARBEBSTENSE175H 25 - 23
AL ARELHREFZRAR - REY
¥ BERRE AEEBHEHSBSIEETHRE
FHNRES > URIBEPHELFE -

I B B X8 12,929,000 7T (2017 & : B #
1,885,000t ) ~ #&#8,543,00070(2017 F :
7 %5 10,868,0007T ) & % #7,695,0007T (2017
F:B¥7,741,000T)E DRI A BEK
KI-THERDHER IRMTHEAX ] -

Included in the Group’s leasehold land and buildings are
leasehold land and buildings situated in the PRC with an
aggregate net book amount of HK$17,901,000 (2017:
HK$18,748,000) as at 31 March 2018 and are held under
medium term leases. As the related prepaid land lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of leasehold land and buildings as property, plant
and equipment in accordance with the provisions of HKAS
17. The remaining leasehold land and buildings of the Group
are situated in Hong Kong and are held under medium term
leases.

Depreciation expense of HK$2,929,000 (2017: HK$1,885,000)
has been charged in “cost of sales”, HK$8,543,000 (2017:
HK$10,868,000) has been charged in “selling and distribution
costs”, and HK$7,695,000 (2017: HK$7,741,000) has been
charged in “administrative expenses”.
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14 BHEMER 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BT BT T
RAVESE At fair value
FHEe Opening balances 194,240 190,785
EBREYE  BERRB Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(MfzE13) (Note 13) (5,070) =
N EARE NS FEE Net gain from fair value adjustment 37,403 3,855
b 5 Exchange realignment 662 (400)
FRERR Closing balance 227,235 194,240
REBREMERUTER2HIEE - The Group’s investment properties are held under the
following lease terms:
2018 2017
HK$ 000 HK$°000
BT BT
NREEZPEHEQYE Medium term leases in the Hong Kong' 111,450 96,200
AR E Z R ERFR AN Medium term leases in the PRC' 108,215 91,540
R E 2 REBBLYE Long term leases in the PRC! 7,570 6,500
227,235 194,240
1 hEIFA Y EH N F20FE E50F 0 MEMHENE ! Medium term leases are for period ranging from 20 to 50 years
HABI#BIB5045E o while long term leases are for period over 50 years.
@ BEMENESRSEZLH (@) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment
properties
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
HEWABE(HES) Gross rental income (Note 6) 7,680 7,351
BREAES 2 REYEELEZE Direct expenses (including repairs and
B (BRHERRE) maintenance) arising on rental-earning
investment properties (1,121) (1,438)
6,559 5,913
FA2018FE3A31H » AEBIEDETHE As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no unprovided
REBE 2 AREBRIFESE(2017F contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance
) o (2017: HK$Nil).
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14 &BEMERE)
b) DFEER
{fH{EAM# 21T (Chung, Chan & Associates)
ERAEE2REYEETELMGE N
EEREMEN2018FK2017F3A31R8
WATE  ERHEETAGERERIE
EMEATESE IR - TREIIRMGEE
FEREDPNEATFEINRZRENES

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(b) Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by the valuer, Chung, Chan &
Associates, to determine the fair value of the investment
properties as at 31 March 2018 and 2017. The
revaluation gains or losses are included in “changes in
fair value of investment properties” in the consolidated

e income statement. The following table analyses the
investment properties carried at fair value, by valuation
method.

Fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs
EREXRTTHRRAETE
WAFE
(Level 3) (Level 3)
(8348 (838
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
KREMEAFEHE Recurring fair value measurements
REWE Investment properties:
—IX¥RBFEN-FE — Industrial building units — Hong Kong 111,450 96,200
—HERNEEN—F ~ Commercial office units — PRC 115,785 98,040
227,235 194,240

FEBNBEREREREBNSHRERES
REEARRATEEASLAN ZBNER -
FRAEEE 1R  F2RREIR2BHNER -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event
or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There
was no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

DFEEER(E) (b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

TRHEHEZE2018FK2017F3A31 81k
FE FHEATITEHRHABTELT

The following table presents the changes in investment
properties with fair value measurements using significant

BE3RNRENE 22 : unobservable inputs (level 3) for the years ended 31
March 2018 and 2017:
BZ2018F3A31HLLFE For the year ended 31 March 2018
PRC Hong Kong Total
Gl &8 5T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BET R BT T BT
FH#ERR Opening balance 98,040 96,200 194,240
BB EYE « BEKRE Transfer to property, plant and
equipment - (5,070) (5,070)
AFEFAE 2 WZFEE  Net gain from fair value adjustment 17,083 20,320 37,403
R AR Exchange realignment 662 - 662
FRER Closing balance 115,785 111,450 227,235
FRBWER (GFALZEUW  Total gains for the year included
aRlRENELTE in the consolidated income
28 K) statement, under “changes in fair
value of investment properties” 17,083 20,320 37,403
BZ2017F3R31HLFE For the year ended 31 March 2017
PRC Hong Kong Total
il =8 st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T
FH#ERR Opening balance 102,335 88,450 190,785
NP EARZINE B Net gain from fair value adjustment (3,895) 7,750 3,855
R Exchange realighment (400) - (400)
FRAERR Closing balance 98,040 96,200 194,240
FRMA(EIE) W (5t Total (losses)/gains for the year
ANalaRMBEY included in the consolidated income
(NTHEEZH IR) statement, under “changes in fair
value of investment properties” (3,895) 7,750 3,855

117



118

PPN

w3

BRI AR MY RE

14 ¥BEYEFE)

(c)

FEREMGEBARE
AEBZREVERBIEXSERM
{E R # =47 (Chung, Chan & Associates)
(EEMSEEERTEEERL I
HAGENREYENBYENESE
FHIARBR )N 2018F 331 HEHMEE
5B #227,235,000 (2017 F : B ¥
194,240,0007T) ° & TIREVHECD IREE
HHAZHEFE=L  HOREFBECR
REFE B RRMTTT26() ©

REEVBEMAMBERE B NWERHBIU
EMELNGEE  THEQZTELERE
ERE - TEEKERRE  BHBREBL
fhERERTREERRERER -

AR ESE B B K

REBUGERENMEERGA
& ;

W bR RS TR AR
B R

BV (LERMETRI M ©

TREERKE - UHBRBILGEAR
EREAHBBEIRATERESELDHT ©

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c)

Valuation process of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at
HK$227,235,000 (2017: HK$194,240,000) as at 31
March 2018 by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuer who holds a recognised
relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued. Certain of the investment
properties are leased to third parties under operating
lease arrangements, further summary details of which
are included in Note 26(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s finance department reviews the valuations
performed by the independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. The finance department reports
directly to the chief operating decision-maker.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the chief operating decision-maker, finance
department and the independent valuer on a regular
basis.

At each financial year end the finance department:

Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

Assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report; and

Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each
reporting date between the chief operating decision-
maker, finance team and the independent valuer.
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14 RBM*E(#) 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
d) EEFE (d) Valuation techniques
EHEXT BRI A B E L FE Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs
REBMRENEN QA FE—RABAER Fair values of investment properties of the Group are
CE(EERATABRRBAB)EE generally determined using the income capitalisation
Wt RTIEWRENERRFE - ZEEKX method which largely uses unobservable inputs and
THEREABEEE taking into account the significant adjustment on market

yields. These significant unobservable inputs include:

Fair value at Relationship of
31 March 2018 Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description (HK$'000)  Technique inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
R2018%3A31HZ QL L PN ELE
A APE(ERTR)  ENE FUBREAE FUREBAEZGE OPEZEE
Industrial units - 111,450  Income capitalisation ~ Passing rents HK$7.1 - HK$13.8 The higher the passing
Hong Kong method per month rents, the higher the fair
per square foot value
TEETEN-BE BABRILE REHE BABYARER I HEELHS  ATEES
EE®I1387T
Yields 2.63% — 4.5% The higher the yield, the
lower the fair value
K= BaEds - A PELE
Office units - PRC 115,785  Income capitalisation ~ Passing rents Renminbi (“RMB”) 21.7- The higher the passing
method RMB80.9 per month rents, the higher the fair
per square meter value
WAEEN-E LON-N I REEE BABYHAARE  HEESHS - ATEES
TAR® D21 72E
AR¥80.97T
Yields 1.20% - 3.23% The higher the yield, the

lower the fair value

Bix BEREE - APELE
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14 &BMRE) 14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(d) KEREGE) (d) Valuation techniques (Continued)
EHEXT BRI A B 2L FE(E Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Continued)
Fair value at Relationship of
31 March 2017 Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description (HK$'000) Technique inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
20174373182 TUBFHAER
EH DHEBRTR) REDE TUEZBAE FUBRFAAEZEE QTVEZER
Industrial units - Hong 96,200 Income capitalisation ~ Passing rents HK$7.1 - HK$12.8 per  The higher the passing
Kong method month per square rents, the higher the fair
foot value
IXRTEM-BE WAERLLE RS BAEVARER T REESHS  AVELS
BE%1287
Yields 3.03% - 5.09% The higher the yield, the
lower the fair value
k= BiEHe - A FELE
Office units - PRC 98,040 Income capitalisation  Passing rents Renminbi (“RMB”) 6.4 - The higher the passing
method RMB80.3 per month rents, the higher the fair
per square meter value
WREEN-FE WAERLE REEE BRAETARARE  HHESHS  ATEHES
TAR#]64nZE
AR#80.37
Yields 0.98% - 3.30% The higher the yield, the
lower the fair value
g BEEdE - APELE
HEFEZFEAVESE - FoERBAR There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
MHEZRBFREBEZE the year. There are inter-relationships between unobservable
inputs.
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A2018F3A3 1B ZEEMBATFBUT :

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

15 SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2018 are

as follows:

Issued ordinary

Ownership interest

Principal activities and

Name kind of legal entity share capital held by place of operation
B AR Y
£ ERERNE BRITEERRE DTALFENmEEEE  TEERREENY
the Company non-
controlling
interests
ARF FERES
Direct Indirect
B BE
Callas Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
company
EENREARLT &2 ARERLT LERBRLL RERUENERE
China-Hongkong Photo Retail British Virgin Islands, limited ~ Ordinary share US$1 - 100% - Investment holding in Hong Kong
Limited liability company
HBREREERAT RBEZES  BREMLNT TERIER REBUSREZR
China-Hongkong Graphic Arts Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share - 100% - Marketing and distribution of
Products Limited company HK$10,000 printing products in Hong Kong
HBHRENERAT &t EREALH ZERE 10,0007 RERERREHDRIER
C.Y. Sun Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, limited  Ordinary share 100% = - Investment holding in Hong Kong
liability company Us$10,000
RBELEE  BREMLT EERI0000%ET REBUSREZR
E-Max Service Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share = 100% - Provision of installation service for
company HK$10,000 household appliances in Hong
Kong
EETRRBERAT &t EREMALT EEREE 10,0007 RERRUFAERZERE
Emmy Technology Development Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share - 70% 30% Provision of professional audio-
Limited company HK$10,000 visual advisory and custom
design and installation services
in Hong Kong
UENBRRERAT B BRERLR EERE% 10,0007 REERMERYIEMRIR -
Rif R R &R
Fotomax (F.E.) Ltd. Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share - 100% - Provision of photographic
company HK$1,000,000 developing and processing
services and retail of
photographic merchandise in
Hong Kong
REX(ER)AH R BRERLR ERREY REBRUBYRMIRBREY
1,000,0007C EMEE
Fuji Life Science Products Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Retail of skincare products in Hong
company Kong
EtAnNRERERAT i BRERATE EEREN LT REBUSERERTE
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(& as follows: (Continued)

15 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2018 are

Place of incorporation/

establishment and Issued ordinary Ownership interest Principal activities and

Name kind of legal entity share capital held by place of operation
B ATAEEY
2R ERERNE ERITEERRA UTALFRNAEEEE  TEXBREEUY
the Company non-
controlling
interests
LS FERER
Direct Indirect
E# i
Fuji Photo Products Company Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share - 100% - Marketing and distribution of
Limited company HK$10,000,000 photographic developing and
processing products in Hong
Kong and Macau
EIRYENERAT &4 BRERATE ERREY REEREMERREERY R
10,000,007 DER
Great Earnings Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
company
BEREERAT & BRERATE EERER LT REBRBNRRE
Majestic Income Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$2 = 100% — Property holding in Hong Kong
company
BEARAA & BREMRATE EERE% LT REBUBNRRE
Orderly Mind Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
company
BHEXERLT &2 ARERLTE EEREY LT REBUBNERE
Orient City Properties Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
company
& ERELLH EEREYLT REBUBNERA
Palace Glory Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
company
MERRAT &2 AREALT LERBRLL RPERBNERA
Pride High Company Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
company
HBARRAT &2 AREALT LERB%LT RPERSNERS
Pro Audio Development Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share = 70% 30% Wholesales of audio and visual
company HK$10,000 products in Hong Kong
EXYEERARLA &t EREELT ZERE 10,0007 RERHEYEER
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A2018F3A31I BT EWMBLARFHBNT ¢

15 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2018 are

(& as follows: (Continued)
Place of incorporation/
establishment and Issued ordinary Ownership interest Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital held by place of operation
HMRL/ RULEER
£ HEERME BRTEERRE UTATFEHAEEEE  TEEBREXLE
the Company non-
controlling
interests
RAFE FiRRER
Direct Indirect
ER S
Sky Rich (Asia) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
company
RE(ZH)BERAR E8  BRELAR LERER LT RAERBNEEE
Sky Year Resources Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
company
AEERERAR % BRERAA LERER LT RAERENESE
Wai Ming Electrical Development Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share - 60% 40% Retail and wholesales of consumer
Limited company HK$10,000 electronic products and
household appliances in Hong
Kong
BREXEREARAA £ BRERLA EBREH 10,0007 REEUZHEETERRZAR
HEERME
YCY International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary share - 100% - Retail and wholesales of consumer
company HK$10,000 electronic products and
household appliances in Hong
Kong
ZRERERLT & ERELLH EEREH 10,0007 REBRSHEETERREAE
HEERMH
LREER (LB ERAT PRC, limited liability company ~ Ordinary share - 100% - Marketing and distribution of
UsD$150,000 printing products in the PRC
HE  AREELT EBMR150,000% 7 RPEEREREHARER
BEXETRRE(LBERAR PRC, limited liability company ~ Ordinary share = 100% — Provision of professional audio-
USD$150,000 visual advisory and custom
design and installation services
in the PRC
HE - BERERLH EEMR150,000% 7T ROERMERYEEMTE R

TREERB
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BAT - ESRRFIHHEMMBEAR 2FFS
EREBRIIER °

EERA  WEHAEEMSBERZFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results
for the year or form a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

In the opinion of the directors that there is no non-controlling

interests that are material to the Group.

16 AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BT T BT T

IELETRH - BRAE Unlisted shares, at cost - —
FEUR — BB D BRI FIE Amount due from an associate 29,105 21,825

EW-—BEEEARRELEERET USAKR
EERIZ5% (2017 1 5%) FREFERIRER
BE - BlE2018F3A31BLFE  K&H
REBENTUMEEER TS WA 2 BB
948,0007T (20174 : % 1,152,000t ) & B
1,009,0007t (20174 : #&#¥708,0007T) ° %%
RS NRBER 5 & HEHE W IRFGETT ©

FEuy — B E D B

Eo

HZREEEANTER

BMERAEERBE AR 2ERZERIARE

& o

M2018FE K 201738318 - AEEN — B
ERATZERSFBOT

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest
bearing at 5% (2017: 5%) per annum on balances as at each
month-end and repayable on demand. For the year ended
31 March 2018, the Group received management fee and
interest income from its associate of HK$948,000 (2017:
HK$1,152,000) and HK$1,009,000 (2017: HK$708,000),
respectively. These transactions are carried out at terms
mutually-agreed between the parties involved in the
transactions.

The carrying amount of the amount due from an associate
approximates its fair value.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in an associate.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, details of the Group’s
interest in an associate are as follows:

Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation ordinary attributable Measurement
Name and operations  share capital to the Group Principal activities method
SRR R BRTEER REEENL
=L =3t RARSEESL FBEH stEIE
kikki.K Retail (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49% Retail of stationery, Equity
HK$300,000 life-style gifts and home
fashion products
BB Efelieiid ftEX A - £FERRRE &z
300,0007T HRERTE
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B —EBEARRIE (&) 16 AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
AEBMBPL AR 2R EERBMEMT : Summarised financial information of the Group’s associate is
as follows:
2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BET T
EEHRTE Total assets 4,005 8,858
BERE Total liabilities 28,306 22,466
Wz Revenue 19,219 22,998
FREIE Loss for the year (10,693) (10,011)
78 17 INVENTORIES

FEBE2FETEAMBE RS - HERED
FHER ZREER HEETERRZIAS
28 o

FATSEERE I2FEREARBE
634,754,000t (2017 5 : #E# 579,217,000
U)o BEEBEFEEEE 6,684,000
(20174 : B EHB%3,575,000) °

The Group’s inventories principally consist of photographic
developing, processing and printing products, skincare
products, consumer electronic products and household
appliances for resale.

The cost of inventories included in “cost of sales” amounted
to HK$634,754,000 (2017: HK$579,217,000) which included
a write-back of provision for inventories of HK$6,684,000
(2017: provision for HK$3,575,000).

B HEIREE 18 TRADE RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
€ 5 EWERTE Trade receivables 48,396 41,428

W ESEVRERERE Less: Provision for impairment of trade

receivables (727) (658)
47,669 40,770

AEEEEFCRGETEURSHBRKRSNE
T-RBRERHEEMS  EEH-—MRABISE30
B EBnEARFNREBERHITIERE
1208 - BUEFYERSEERE » THS
MEEEBFELE - REBRHBBEFRE
BrRWERN  UTREEEEHHBPAURER
REERE - SN EEE TR RBHER

M2018F K 2017F3831 8 @ FErTEZ AT
REFHEE °

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are either on a
cash basis or on credit. For credit sales, the credit period is
generally 15 to 30 days, except for certain well-established
customers where the terms are extended to 120 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit pre-approved by senior
management. The Group seeks to maintain strict control

over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, balances are relating to a
large number of diversified customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end

WERTERER ZERER DT of the year, based on the payment due date and net of
impairment, is as follows:

2018 2017
HK$ 000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
BNER Current 30,617 28,730
12318 A 1 to 3 months 16,071 10,467
3{E A L E Over 3 months 981 1,573
47,669 40,770

B RUIRBRREREZEBNT

The movements in provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

R4R 18 At 1 April 658 698
[ 5 % Exchange realignment 69 (40)
R3A31H At 31 March 727 658

ZEEB HRREZ B 5 EWARIEY R B AR
BRE - BIRERERZEF - FEELE
BRREEREEEANERRIRARMGRERE
B -

WERBRBEZEZBBRIREZRR DT T

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties or in default or
delinquency in payments. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$°000

BET T BT T

I EEER R IR E Neither past due nor impaired 30,618 28,731

BHLRIEBEBRRE Less than 1 month past due but not impaired 10,468 9,591
EHA 8 B = A B ERIBE 1 month and over 1 month past due but not

impaired 6,583 2,448

47,669 40,770
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A2018% K% 2017538318 @ Y IEAHERE
Z2ESEWRBEZNTREFARE -

EEMERBEZE S BRIREES FEAE
BEERFENTH2BILETFAR - REBE
K FAEBESRABEMZEEHRELR
BEE  RACEEZAYEEAEY  MZF
EHRMPRD/T2ENDE - XEBIWEHNZE
HEHBEEMERARIHMREF EEER -

AEBE S RWIRE 2 REESRQFERES
WEBHGHE -

RBEEAMFEAGRNEAEERRSE SR
IRIEZBREME °

FRBES  RBAMRR - Rk Hf
FE W R IR

AEBEZFRBRE REBANKE - BER
HitEWREARE - SIB LA EEC BB
ERE - LIASRANESREERY TR
RCHFWEWIRBARE - AREFREB KR
BERAMEWERE ZREAEENTERES °
RBEABFEGRNEAEERES LREE
FEWERIE 2 BREE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, trade receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number of
diversified customers.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
Directors of the Group are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in HK$.

The maximum credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of the trade receivables.

NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS, CURRENT PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group’s non-current deposits, current prepayments,
deposits and other receivables are non-interest bearing.
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
The Group’s non-current and current deposits and other
receivables approximate to their fair values. The maximum
credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each
class of receivable mentioned above.

Re&RBITHER 20 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
FREABEA={EA 2 EIKHEL Non-pledged time deposits with original
EE N maturity of over three months 27,411 58,380
FEERERHRAZEELRIREE  Cash and cash equivalents in the
HIER : consolidated statement of cash flows:
BeRBTER Cash and bank balances 65,737 49,951
REMALR=EA 2EIKHEH Non-pledged time deposits with original
TR maturity of less than three months 126,338 132,849
192,075 182,800
e Total 219,486 241,180
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ReRBITHER#E

REXR FEBUARBHEZRESRIRT
HERTERPEIRAZRITHB37,351,0007T
(20174 : 8%33,736,0007T) - ARKEI T 6
BEHABRAHMEY  ERBETFEZ(INEE
BERPDR(EE  SERFTESERE) &
EEEAEBHTETHIEERE Z2RITHEAR
MHBAHEMEY o

FRIRT 2 RERBRTE B FRFERIUF
BAE - REAKEHHNRBREFTR 22U
o BHERERRE-BE-—FULERE B
DRIRE TR 2 EHMAE  MITHEHRFREE
REFAWRBTHENCEZRIT - XEER
ERRELSEER 2REEEQTERS °

BHEMBRRRRE
REBEEMREGSRE2BHFE - ESE
NERERZERFR ZREDTAOT -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

21

At the end of the year, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$37,351,000
(2017: HK$33,736,000) deposited with the banks in the PRC.
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and over one year
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLE

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables at the
end of the year, based on the date of goods purchased and
services rendered, is as follows:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BET T BT T

3@ A A Within 3 months 27,240 41,051
3EA L Over 3 months 32,893 688
60,133 41,739

FEEEZREMNRERZEEARE - BBE
AR30HHIRARG - ~EEEZEMNREAR
REZREERENFEMESE

P 2 % 2 3L A £ R TR
AEEZHEEAEEARE  H—RERY
R3MEA o A EE 2 E A IRIE 2 IR E A 5
ATEAE -

22

The Group’s trade and bills payable are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled on 30-day terms. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s trade and bills payable approximate
their fair values.

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

The Group’s other payables are non-interest bearing and have
general terms of less than 3 months. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s other payables approximate to their fair values.

2018 2017

HK$ 000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

TAWRIE Receipt in advance 15,275 12,396
Hfth fE S BRIE Other payables 14,724 20,222
EARETHERER Dividend payable to non-controlling interests 838 =
FEETREX Accrued expenses 20,942 19,843
st Total 51,779 52,461
W ERBESaE Less: Non-current accrued liabilites 1,021 2,837
TRENER D Current portion 50,758 49,624




e ISR AR ML

23 EERIE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 DEFERRED TAX

BREEREBEERBEEN ST :

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
is as follows:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

B IBEE Deferred tax assets 114 234
ELEHEEE Deferred tax liabilities (28,135) (23,571)
EERIEAE - FEE Deferred tax liabilities — net (28,021) (23,337)

EYEFAEBEERRB A EEBEERNLER
T FREEHEREREENAEIHNT !

The gross movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, during the year are as
follows:

BRERBEEE Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
Revaluation related
of investment depreciation
properties expense Total
BT EE
EfRENFE AzhERHRE 5T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
2016F481H At 1 April 2016 23,201 2,075 25,276
FARGERRR (Credited)/charged to the consolidated
(5t N), /0B (FfzE10)  income statement during the year
(Note 10) (1,525) 5 (1,520)
E R Exchange realignment (185) - (185)
M2017%3A318 K
2017%4A1H At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 21,491 2,080 23,571
FRARGAWE RN Charged/(credited) to the consolidated
(5t A) (FgzE10) income statement during the year
(Note 10) 4,271 (5) 4,266
fE S Exchange realignment 298 - 298
M2018%3H31H At 31 March 2018 26,060 2,075 28,135
BIERAEE Deferred tax assets

Unrealised profit

REEEF

HK$°000

BT T

2016%F4R1H At 1 April 2016 (183)
FARGEWRETRETA Credited to the consolidated

(F¥zE10) income statement during the year (Note 10) (51)

M2017FE3831 B K20176

4H1H At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 (234)
FARARGERZERNR Charged to the consolidated

(KMf5E10) income statement during the year (Note 10) 120

7A2018F3A31H At 31 March 2018 (114)
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BEERBEEDRAE B ESERR  #
LEREEBRECERS SREREEN
BAZE AR - R2018F3A31 8 » AEEM
B 3 7 B B 18 8 %5 65,012,000 7T (2017 5 ©
B 161,862,000 ) ERIELERIBEERK
388,345,000t (2017 5 : # % 371,066,000
7o) WEIE AR EHE £ BB A RIR IR ZFERB
A o HRZEEERUIIMEREEEDR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carrying-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related

tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At

31 March 2018, the Group did not recognise deferred

tax assets of HK$65,012,000 (2017: HK$61,862,000) in
respect of tax losses amounting to HK$388,345,000 (2017:
HK$371,066,000) that are available for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses and deductible temporary differences
as they have arisen in subsidiaries with uncertain future
operating profit streams.

The unrecognised estimated tax losses are analysed by years
from expiring as follows:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

2 & m B H With no expiry date 62,257 59,991
BFER Within 5 years 2,755 1,871
65,012 61,862

R2018F3A31H » BiAKEMNBE AR ZKRE
HBAEEZEMBEMS  AREIAR
IhZEREELR  AEEYEBEHIZHIE
B8 BMUBBARBERELESBEERE (2017
FE) o

AATRMERRRAREBEETRAEHE

At 31 March 2018, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2017: HK$Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax
should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

Ho payment of dividends by the Company to its Shareholders.
24 BBE 24 SHARE CAPITAL
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T
B& {5 Shares
EE Authorised:
@ R%2,000,000,0008% (20174 - 2,000,000,000 (2017: 2,000,000,000)
2,000,000,0008% ) R EEEY  ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
18 200,000 200,000
Number of Share capital
ordinary share
of HK$0.10 each IR
BREERYE HK$'000
I BEBREE BT T
BEITRAR Issued and fully paid
M2017F3A318K At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018
2018F3H31H 1,185,318,349 118,532
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fERHBEA
AEERBEEHNZHEALEREYE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 RESERVES
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 77 of
the consolidated financial statements.

26 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(@) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (Note
14) under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 3 years (2017:
1 to 3 years). The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants falling due as follows:

2018 2017
HK$ 000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
1R Within one year 5,601 5912
2E5F (BEERME) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 4,441 1,087
10,042 6,999

b) EHEBEA (b) As lessee

AEEZELHENORHFREETEEMD
ME - MERREEBIEABIE3F
(2017%F : 1 235) - RE\EF B EPAEIR
RN - BT AR 2 EEHOER
EEHERENRTEMTYEZHENR
AEERSEFEL - ARZEZTEMD
W2 RREEELERBET - UTIAR
SEAHBERAEE - EETAREELOE

= o
=

R20185F3A31H » AEBB T AHE 2
REBOMARRR IV 2 HERSEHE
EIHANT ¢

The Group leases certain of its retail outlets under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for retail outlets are
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 3 years (2017: 1
to 3 years). Certain non-cancellable operating leases are
based on the higher of a fixed rental and contingent rent
based on sales of the retail outlets pursuant to the terms
and conditions as set out in the respective agreements.
As the future sales of these retail outlets could not be
accurately determined, the relevant contingent rent has
not been included below and only the minimum lease
commitments have been included.

At 31 March 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

2018 2017

HK$ 000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

1R Within one year 47,650 46,541
2E5F (BEERME) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 37,570 27,615
85,220 74,156
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but
not yet incurred is as follows:

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

ME  BERRE Property, plant and equipment 130 2,234
RZEALEZS 28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BRRGEMBRREMBFTIREEN  FR
AEERAEE 2 EEXBKBREDETT T
EXBEALRS -

FEBTEEBAERELTES - EZH
EE-SHIBFRNGSUBRRME32 -

DS z&mMIR
ERERMTANERZIREBENT ¢

EHEE -HERRERESR

29

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has the following significant
related party transactions carried out in the normal course of
the Group’s business during the year.

The Group’s key management personnel are the directors of
the Company. Further details of directors’ remuneration are
included in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the year are as follows:

Financial assets — loans and receivables

2018 2017

HK$ 000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

B 5 EWERIE Trade receivables 47,669 40,770
RE&RHtEKRERE Deposits and other receivables

(FESFRIEBRSM) (excluding prepayments) 36,387 40,372

BERIBITHEE Cash and bank balances 219,486 241,180

e — R N B FRIE Amount due from an associate 29,105 21,825

332,647 344,147

ERAR-HDBBEEARZEMAR

Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at amortised cost

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$°000

BET T BT T

BREMRENZE Trade and bills payable 60,133 41,739
EstBEREMEMRE(ESM  Accrued liabilities and other payables

B ERRIN) excluding non-financial liabilities 22,496 24,443

82,629 66,182
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and bank balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such

as trade receivables and trade and bills payable, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk with respect
to RMB. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk

by performing regular review and monitoring its foreign
exchange exposure.

At 31 March 2018, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by
1% (2017: 1%) against RMB with all other variables held
constant, profit (2017: loss) for the year would have been
HK$320,000 higher/lower (2017: HK$278,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of RMB-denominated cash and bank balances
deposited with the banks in Hong Kong.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other
currencies are less sensitive to movement in exchange rates
as the amounts are not significant to the Group.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the interest income

received on the Group’s bank balances. The Group’s interest-
generating assets are mainly denominated in HK$, RMB and
United States dollars. The Group manages its interest rate risk
by regularly monitoring the macro economic factors that may
impact on the interest rates.

If the interest rates have been 0.5% (2017: 0.5%) higher/
lower while all other variables are held constant, the profit
(2017: loss) for the year and total equity would increase/
decrease (2017: decrease/increase) by HK$0.6 million (2017:
HK$0.8 million) due to an increase/decrease in interest
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis. Details of the Group’s credit policy are set
out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits,
amount due from an associate, deposits, and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing
deposits with financial institution that meet the established
credit rating of AA. Given these high credit ratings,
management does not expect any counterparty to fail to
meet its obligations.

The credit risk on cash at bank deposited in Hong Kong

is monitored closely by management of the Group who
will assess the reputation, the risk of recoverability and
the financial information, if any, of the counter parties
before placing of deposits. Since the Group trades only
with recognised and creditworthy third parties, there is no
requirement for collateral.
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30 MERAREEBRRBRE (&) 30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

BN & R Liquidity risk
AEERSEEFERBEIEK TR HE The Group consistently maintains a prudent financing policy
REERFZRZREREERR » BLULURER and strives to ensure that it maintains sufficient cash and
BESER o credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements.
AEEBRFRZENVFBRIHzeREREZ The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
ZEAERMNT the end of the year, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

Between

Less than 1 year to
On demand 1 year 2 years Total
REREE LPIME 1FE25H Bt

HK$’000  HK$:000  HK$'000  HK$000
BETT  BETRT BETT BT

20183 H31H 31 March 2018
BESEMNKRERERE Trade and bills payables 34,114 26,019 = 60,133
EstBEREMEMIRE  Accrued liabilities and other payables
(GEemBERN) excluding non-financial liabilities 22,496 = = 22,496
56,610 26,019 - 82,629
2017%3A31H 31 March 2017
EZEMNREREE Trade and bills payables 20,712 21,027 - 41,739
EstBERHEMEMIRE  Accrued liabilities and other payables
(GEemBERMN) excluding non-financial liabilities 24,443 = = 24,443
45,155 21,027 - 66,182
FEAER Capital management
REBEAREE T EBEABRERNERLE The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
EREFRNEELEURETFERZ2ERL are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
T PXHHERRETEIESRKREEE - concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.
NEBRELSERASEMEIEELEANLERELL The Group manages its capital structure and makes
R¥ e AR o /K& B 1] fE AR 6] IR R R B adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
ZIRE s MBRERIREERFBITHIR D UL To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
AR EARLER o HF2018FE3H31H %2017 adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
FIAMBLEE  FREAREE2HE - K to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
FREFLESS o in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.
NEBFBARBLER(RBEERLUREA The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is
BIERER o REBZHEAES R R current assets divided by current liabilities. The Group’s
SR100% - REBEERERE s EZEWER policy is to keep the current ratio above 100%. Current assets
g JEfRIE e N EHAEIWERIE ~ arigm include inventories, trade receivables, prepayments, deposits
MERBESRIBTES - RHEERIEESE and other receivables, tax recoverable and cash and bank
NERIBRERE - ErtEE - HMtE(RIERE balances. Current liabilities include trade and bills payable,
FFLIE © accrued liabilities, other payables and tax payable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POLICIES (Continued)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

BXEH(E) Capital management (Continued)
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
MENEEBEE Total current assets 520,543 498,476
FEaERE Total current liabilities (121,756) (99,625)
RBEE T Net current assets 398,787 398,851
MENEL = Current ratio 428% 500%
EAFEERRERFHRED 31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
e BET T BT T
BE ASSETS
FERENEE Non-current assets
RHBATRE Investments in subsidiaries 603,918 606,258
RBEE Current assets
FEAFIER EMEUWERE  Prepayments and other receivables 253 247
ReRkBELEEEE Cash and cash equivalents 772 751
RENVEEMEE Total current assets 1,025 998
EEARE Total assets 604,943 607,256
Rz EQUITY
KAREEAELER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
(&N Share capital 118,532 118,532
53] Reserves (@) 484,241 486,746
i Total equity 602,773 605,278
=8 LIABILITIES
REEE Current liabilities
EFtEEREAMMEFEIRE  Accrued liabilities and other payables 2,170 1,978
BEBE Total liabilities 2,170 1,978
EERAEHE Total equity and liabilities 604,943 607,256

AATEBEERBRCN2018F6H21 BEES
eHETRUTESARESE

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
YN
Chairman

E-

behalf

Sun Tao Hung Stanley

E3 =N

Deputy Chairman and CEO
B /ERAITHARH

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 21 June 2018 and was signed on its
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31 FAFIEEARERREBEHF) 31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

Fff=

(@) AABZRHEZD

COMPANY (Continued)
Note:

(@) Movement of reserves of the Company

Share Capital
premium redemption Contributed Accumulated
account reserve surplus losses Total
RiOEER EXABERDMHE - BHEH iR BH

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT  AEBTRT BBt BETT  B%TR

A20165F4A1H At 1 April 2016 490,378 1,619 130 (2,690) 489,437
FEEENREEEIE  Loss and total comprehensive loss
REE for the year - - - (2.691) (2.691)
M2017%F3H31B% At 31 March 2017 and
2017%481H 1 April 2017 490,378 1,619 130 (5,381) 486,746
FEBENEZMEEE  Loss and total comprehensive loss
Fak] for the year - - - (2,505) (2,505)
M2018F3H31H At 31 March 2018 490,378 1,619 130 (7,886) 484,241
AARZEREBBARBENE QARG 2 AFER The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value
BADNBDFRUEEIEMBITZROBZEEZBS © of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
REBEBFEIBIFARERIBE) » —BARTRE Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act
FTEATEESESHERRIEEDIK 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may make distributions to its

members out of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),

ZHARREGBEZHSE) COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES)
A) E=EH& (A) Directors’ emoluments
EESHMESHIWT ¢ The remuneration of each director is set out below:
B Z2018F3A31HLEFE : For the year ended 31 March 2018:
Employer's Estimated
contribution to  money value
Discretionary a retirement of other
Fees Salary bonus  benefit scheme benefits Total
BEZERIK  HitFED
EEA (M) Name of directors (Note (i)) e He FREMTA BRTEMY @AHE¥ER st
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR  RSTR OSETR TR BRTR BETR
NG Sun Tai Lun, Dennis 150 1,200 25 18 - 1,393
& () Sun Tao Hung, Stanley (Note (ii)) 110 2,399 36 18 = 2,563
REE Ng Yuk Wah, Eileen 110 1,116 23 18 - 1,267
HEE Tang Kwok Tong, Simon 110 978 20 9 = 1,117
EXH Au Man Chung Malcolm 210 - - - - 210
FRE Li Ka Fai David 260 = = - - 260
e Liu Hui Allan 130 - = = = 130
iy Wong Chi Yun Allan 210 = = = = 210
BE Fung Yue Chun Stephen 130 - - - - 130
st Total 1,420 5,693 104 63 - 7,280
BZ2017F3A831HLFE : For the year ended 31 March 2017:
Employer’s Estimated
contribution to  money value
Discretionary  a retirement of other
Fees Salary bonus benefit scheme benefits Total
EEZRIK  HibFIE#
ESHA(KEEG)  Name of directors (Note (i) He ¥e FRAMTA RAHEMHES AHEMEE st
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT  EETR  EETR BT BETT  EETR
YN Sun Tai Lun, Dennis 150 1,200 29 18 - 1,397
FEAEENIETD) Sun Tao Hung, Stanley (Note (i) 110 1,998 41 18 - 2,167
REE Ng Yuk Wah, Eileen 110 1,116 28 18 - 1,272
HEE Tang Kwok Tong, Simon 110 960 24 18 - 1,112
BXH Au Man Chung Malcolm 210 - - - - 210
TRE Li Ka Fai David 260 - - - - 260
2 Liu Hui Allan 130 - - - - 130
ETM Wong Chi Yun Allan 210 - - - - 210
Bz Fung Yue Chun Stephen 130 - - - - 130
st Total 1,420 5,274 122 72 - 6,388




OB TR ERMIEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 EXFFISRER(FREMEc22E(AF
GH)EISBEAF(HEEEHNEEH)
HH) (Be226E ) RERLTHAMES
ZHRRESMEZIKE) (#F)

(A) EEM&E)
BiEE

i) LEXFARNHFHRTZEZESULEEE
BNARENR/RAEARKREBMZESH
S0 O A SR B T UER 0 BN
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B E
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32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(A) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Note:

(i) The remuneration shown above represents remuneration
received from the Group by these directors in their capacity
as employees to the Group and/or in their capacity as
directors of the companies now comprising the Group.

(ii) Sun Tao Hung, Stanley is also the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group and his remuneration disclosed above includes
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive
Officer.

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2017: HK$NIil).

(C) Consideration provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group did
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2017: HK$Nil).

(D) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
As at 31 March 2018, there is no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and controlled entities
with such directors (2017: HK$Nil).

(E) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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Details of Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2018

Location Category of lease Existing use
g R REAZ
BB Unit D on the 1st Floor and Medium term leasehold Warehouse
NE Car Park Space Nos. 16 rhERFE 4 &2
AR and 17 on the Ground Floor
EEREE2 15 and Car Park Space No. 10
REIEREIEDEN - on the Lower Ground Floor
T EENI6R17T3HR Eldex Industrial Building
W TEEFEM10% 21 Ma Tau Wai Road
Hunghom
Kowloon
Hong Kong
hEARKEANE 8th Level, Donghai Commercial Centre Medium term leasehold Commercial
b 588 Yan An East Road FREAFRA E
EHE Huang Pu District
R RIR5885 Shanghai
REEEHL8E People’s Republic of China
R Units 2301, 2303, 2305 and 2307 Medium term leasehold Commercial
MR on 23rd Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre HETEA 3%
&1+ H18220-2485% Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road
TETERL232 New Territories
2301 ~ 2303 ~ 2305%2307Z Hong Kong
—if /% Unit No. 6 on 6th Floor together with Medium term leasehold Commercial
Vehicle Parking Spaces Nos. 37, 51 and 60 HEAE A S
m@l_hﬁ on Ground Floor, Block C
SETIXAEMER Ko Fai Industrial Building
CEEh T S BB HE37 - No. 7 Ko Fai Road
51 608K Kowloon
Hong Kong
BB Units 2511-16 Medium term leasehold Commercial
MR on 25th Floor and Vehicle Parking FRERFE A ¥
B+ Hi8220-2485% Space No. 23 on 1st Floor
ZETEFU258 Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre
2511-16ER Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road
EEHERRH235% New Territories
Hong Kong
HEARIAE Whole of 27th Level and Medium term leasehold Commercial
ERE Car Parking Space Nos. 37, 38 and 39 FRERFE A %
=0 Guang Fa Bank Building
RIE No. 83 Lower Long Lin Road
BT 833 Dongshan District
EReRAE Guangzhou
2TE2ERFENIT Guangdong Province
38%39%% People’s Republic of China
hEARANE Units 1401-1408 on 14th Level Medium term leasehold Commercial
bl Jin Cheng Zhong Xin HERE A S
EF SHEENE 4th District, Fang Qun Garden
E3H D Fang Zhuang District
144£1401-1408% Beijing
People’s Republic of China
hEARKEANE Unit No. 4 on Levels 17/18 together with Long term leasehold Commercial
b Car Parking Space No. 10 on 1/F HHELN
EER Golden Bridge Mansion
EZFIE20775 2077 Yan An Road West
eRRAE Changning District
17/181B4E K Shanghai
2EEA 1057 People’s Republic of China
HEARKENE Unit C-13, C-14, C-15 Long term leasehold Commercial
Sﬁé: An’Xin Building REAELN ES
O Heping Main Road
A RIE (Gl TAR%) (Yanjiang 4th Road), Haikou
RIERE Hainan Province
C-13 +C-14 ~ C-15% People’s Republic of China
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Sun Tai Lun Dennis (Chairman)

Sun Tao Hung Stanley (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
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Sun Tao Hsi Ryan (appointed on 1 April 2018)
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Solicitor

Gallant

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
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Principal Office in Hong Kong
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Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office
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Hong Kong Share Registrar and Transfer Office
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